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Corporate Profile

DNEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
Mr. Cai Shangwu
Mr. Sam Ming Choy
Mr. Lai Fulin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman)
Mr. U Kean Seng
Mr. Zhao Yue

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting
Ms. Wu Xiuru

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng
Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

SOLICITORS

Angela Ho & Associates

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE

EEE

MITES
MTHERE
Sam Ming Choy %t 4
by

ERMITESE
Lai Guanglin %t 4 (F/&)
BIEBRITES

wAEEE
IBE L
RFMELL

35 3L % By
BEROKEE SIS

p3ed )
{a] SR A 2B A5 T

FERMBFRERERE

BEEPREBLELAERAA
BB

SEAREFR 1835
AR

4612



PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE

12th Floor, Phase |
Austin Tower

22-26A Austin Avenue
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2728 7237
Fax: (852) 2387 2999

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Retail shops

G/F., 618 Shanghai Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
Tel: (852) 2395 0181

Fax: (852) 2787 3421

G/F., No. 30 Hop Yick Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
Tel: (852) 2473 3660
Fax: (852) 2442 2766

Shop A, G/F., No. 7-11 Tai Wong Street East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2866 6001

Fax: (852) 2866 6339

Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13,
R/C, Macau

Tel: (853) 2855 3693

Fax: (853) 2895 1020

Corporate Profile

NEER

ERERBIT

hERTT (BE) BRAH

FR IR RRARAT (M) RO AR AR
o B TRgSRTT () BIRAE]
LISEERITARAH

BITIRT (BB) BRAA

M EE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

HMEE
BB

Az}

T mE& 22-26 5% A
TFIREFTT

F—H1218

BE 1 (852) 2728 7237
{EH : (852) 2387 2999

FEERME

Py

JLEERE A EEHE 618 T
B ¢ (852) 2395 0181
{EH : (852) 2787 3421

FAITEAA R 305k T
B : (852) 2473 3660
{EE : (852) 2442 2766

BAET
ATRE7T-115H T AL
B ¢ (852) 2866 6001
{EH : (852) 2866 6339

RPN EUSEGRET 135
RERIT B

5 1 (853) 2855 3693
{EH : (853) 2895 1020

—ZZHFEFIHR Annual Report 2009



Corporate Profile

DNEEH

Warehouse

Lot 3719 in DD104, Yuen Long, N.T.
Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

Lot 372383 in DD104, Yuen Long, N.T.
Bk (852) 2471 9048
{EH : (852) 2482 1298

CHINA OFFICE

Room 2803, Huai Hai China Tower,

No. 885, Ren Min Road, Shanghai, PRC
(Postcode: 200010)

Tel: 86-21-6355 9755

Fax: 86-21-6355 9699

No. 3 Langwei Road, Xiaolong Village,
Shiji Town, Panyu District, Guangzhou, PRC
Tel: 86-20-6194 9418
86-20-6194 9428
Fax: 86-20-8455 4077

No. 1 Jinyufeng Road, Menlou Town
Fushan District, Yantai, Shandong, PRC
Tel: 86-53-5698 7788

Fax: 86-53-5698 7789
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

| have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
the annual report of China Pipe Group Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the
Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2009.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$453.8 million
(2008: HK$701.8 million), representing a decrease
of 35% as compared with that in 2008. The loss
attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$39.7 million in 2009, as compared
with approximately HK$42.6 million last year. The basic
loss per share was approximately HK0.31 cents (2008:
HKO0.34 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend a final dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2009 (2008: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

2009 was a challenging year for the Group. After
the financial tsunami happened in the last quarter
of 2008, the Hong Kong economy, similar to other
countries’, has gone to a recession. Many construction
projects have been deferred and hence demand for
construction materials was adversely affected. At the
same time, the market competition continued to be
fierce. As a result, the profit margin of our Hong Kong
trading operation was, to a certain extent, affected.

To cope with the challenging environment, the
management has streamlined the Hong Kong trading
operations. Given the particularly volatile market,
we have strengthened our purchasing function and
managed to control our cost at a reasonable level. In
addition, the Group persisted to improve our service
to and deepen our business relationship with our
customers.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERFRE

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT

In July 2009, we have announced an acquisition
of 60% of equity interest in /EESRLEEINES
R AR (“Jinyufeng”), which is principally engaged
in the manufacturing and distribution of seamless
pipes and related products in mainland China. The
transaction was completed in early November 2009.
After completion, Jinyufeng has already started to
make contributions to the Group in terms of revenue
and profit. The Group will leverage on the production
technology and experience of this newly acquired
business to complement our existing operation. We
shall increase our resources to enhance our purchasing
function and distribution network and focus our
business development on a regional basis.

PROSPECTS

The Group will strengthen our efforts to upgrade our
products and services, develop new markets, and
deepen our business relationship with our customers.

Since the completion of our acquisition of Jinyufeng in
early November 2009, we have been rationalizing its
operation. In particular, we have improved our sales
strategy and focused on selling pipes to energy related
projects operated by major oil and gas companies in
mainland China. Through this, we aim at improving the
gross profit margin of Jinyufeng and accordingly the
return to the Group.

In order to further improve return to our shareholders,
the management is also actively seeking investment
opportunities in the Asia Pacific region.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express our
thankfulness to a team of dedicated and professional
employees for their outstanding performance at the
time of global turbulence and to our shareholders for
their persistent support.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWRDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$453.8 million
(2008: HK$701.8 million), representing a decrease
of 35% as compared with that in 2008. The loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$39.7 million in 2009, as compared
with approximately HK$42.6 million last year. The basic
loss per share was approximately HK0.31 cents (2008:
HKO0.34 cents).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Trading of pipes and fittings

In the last quarter of 2008, Hong Kong economy had
been inevitably affected by the global financial turmoil.
The economic downturn and the tightening of liquidity
led to a negative sentiment on the property market.
Consequently, it brought adverse impact on the
demand for construction materials. In the second half
of 2009, however, the property market in Hong Kong
had shown signs of recovery.

In 2009, the trading of pipes and fittings reported
revenue (excluding inter group sales) of approximately
HK$390.9 and a loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year amounting to approximately
HK$13.2 million. The loss was mainly attributable to the
decrease in gross profit margin and a specific provision
for inventories amounting to approximately HK$11.8
million.
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Manufacturing and sale of seamless pipes

In early November 2009, the Group completed an
acquisition of 60% equity interests in a company,
Jinyufeng, a leading manufacturer of seamless pipes
in Yantai, Shandong Province, the mainland China.
The purchase consideration was RMB18 million in
cash plus an issue of 800,000,000 new shares of
the Company. This acquisition has strengthened our
earnings in terms of revenue and profit contribution
from new product and would develop our business in
the potential market in mainland China.

For the period from November to December 2009,
seamless pipes segment reported revenue of
approximately HK$61.2 million and profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$0.4 million.

Investment in properties

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group
had recorded fair value gains of approximately HK$12.1
million on the investment properties held in Hong Kong
and loss of approximately HK$8.0 million on vacant
properties held in Shanghai.

At the end of 2009, the Group had initiated action to
dispose of the investment properties in Hong Kong
and the disposals with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$114.7 million, were completed in
January and February 2010.

After year end, the Group has leased out some units
of the retail shops located in Shanghai. As the Group
is expecting to lease out more shops this year, the
properties will generate more steady rental income and
return to the Group in the future.
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PROSPECTS

The Group will strengthen our efforts to upgrade our
products and services, develop new markets, and
deepen our business relationship with our customers.

Since the completion of our acquisition of Jinyufeng in
early November 2009, we have been rationalizing its
operation. In particular, we have improved our sales
strategy and focused on selling pipes to oil fields of
energy related projects operated by major oil and gas
companies in mainland China. Through this, we aim
at improving the gross profit margin of Jinyufeng and
accordingly the return to the Group.

In order to further improve return to our shareholders,
the management is actively seeking investment
opportunities in the Asia Pacific region.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2009, the cash and bank
balances of the Group were approximately HK$55.8
million (2008: HK$19.5 million). Basically the Group’s
working capital requirement has been financed by
its internal resources. The Group believes that funds
generated from operations and the available banking
facilities will enable the Group to meet its future working
capital requirements.

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of term loans and trade finance
facilites of approximately HK$407.8 million (2008:
HK$327.3 million) and approximately HK$308.1
million (2008: HK$303.0 million) were utilised. The
Group’s total bank borrowings stood at approximately
HK$278.1 million (2008: HK$294.2 million) of which
approximately HK$238.2 million (2008: HK$160.0
million) bank borrowings will be matured within one
year.
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Of the total HK$278.1 million bank borrowings at
31st December 2009, HK$243.8 million (2008: entire
amount of HK$294.2 million) were subject to floating
rates and HK$34.3 million were subject to fixed rate.

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had unsecured
shareholder loans amounted to approximately HK$54.4
million, of which HK$49.4 million bearing interest at
HK dollar prime rate plus 4.75% per annum and HK$5
million bearing interest rate at 1% per month.

The gearing ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity maintained at approximately 81% as at 31st
December 2009 and approximately 80% as at 31st
December 2008.

As at 31st December 2009, 40% (2008: 82%) of the
Group’s total bank borrowings were denominated in
HK dollars, 60% (2008: 18%) were denominated in
Renminbi.

The Group conducts its business transactions
mainly in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States
dollar, Euro and Australian dollar. For the year under
review, the Group has not entered into any derivative
contracts or hedging transactions. In order to mitigate
foreign exchange risk, however, the Group has been
closely monitoring its foreign currency exposure and
requirement and will arrange for any hedging facilities if
necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2009, certain assets of the Group
held by subsidiaries with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$479.3 million (2008: HK$315.5
million) were pledged to banks for banking facilities
obtained.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2009, a subsidiary of the Group
in mainland China has provided a corporate guarantee
in favour of a bank to support the banking facilities of
HK$29.2 million (2008: Nil) obtained by an independent
third party.

STAFF AND EMPLOYMENT

As at 31st December 2009, the Group employed a
total of 543 (2008: 193) employees. Total employee
benefit expenses was approximately HK$44.4 million
(2008: HK$60.1 million).

Remuneration schemes are reviewed annually and
certain staff members are entitled to sales commission.
In addition to the basic salaries and contributions to
the mandatory provident fund, the Group also pays
discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme for Hong Kong
employees. The Group contributes to an employee
pension scheme established by the PRC Government
which undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group in mainland China.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERERE

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 45, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 13th May 2009. He has over 20 years
of experience in investment management, investment
banking, and general management of listed companies.
Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment
analyst in 1989 and since then, he has served several
major financial corporations including J.P. Morgan,
Deutsche Bank, and CITIC Capital. In addition to his
vast investment banking and management experience,
Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such as
New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics
Holdings Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career,
Mr. Yu has focused on direct investment and M&A
activities in sectors including construction materials,
infrastructure, energy, technologies, media and financial
services.

Mr. Yu has a Bachelor of Art degree in English
Literature from the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a
Master of Art degree in Education from the University
of Toronto, and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Western Ontario.

Mr. Sam Ming Choy, aged 45, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23rd February 2009. He has been re-designated
as Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer
of the Company with effect from 15th September
2009. He has approximately 15 years of experience
in managing investment enterprises. He was admitted
to the Australian Government and served as Senior
Commercial Representative in 1995, and has held the
posts of executive director of Australian New Resource
Investment Group since 2001, the executive director of
American Chinese Culture Foundation (FFZE{bE 4
@) and American Chinese Culture Relics Society (9
EXWIHE) since 2006 respectively. Mr. Sam Ming
Choy holds a Doctor of Business Administration jointly
issued by Tsinghua University and Southern California
University.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE

B AEBZEBE

EFNeAEBEABZERGMANT

PITESE

ARESE 455 RZZETZNFHAT=-HEZE
BAER 7%%1T§$%§f$ﬂﬁa HEREER &
BRTEEMAREEFEAEB20F L5 - a1t
R—=NNANFEMAINEKXRZH%Z Mackenzie Financial
Corporation * FIEIEE D ITED 2 B EAE - 1b1% -
HERBENERKE  BEERTRPEEAESLH
FTECREE  BRERERTAEEEE T AREYL
BRI arENBE RN RSB ELERA
ARG RIERERARSEETESLTARR - R
BEBEEEY A ETERNEN - RS - 6
BB EEREERSRRBETECEERERME
JEE) ©

BAEERAILRIINEEASBREES LB 2R
%K%ﬂ?%@i?h&%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l%ﬁ
BB -

Sam Ming Choy%4 ' 455 WM-_ZEZTNF A
ZtT-HEZEALXR TZ?’%ié‘Hﬂﬂi% 4=
EENFNATHARBHATAERRAGZHITESR
HREEER BREBNISFEERELE LR K
R—NNAFEIMAERMNEAT - HE Senior Commercial
Representative (B REBNREK) - BZEZ—FREE
Australian New Resource Investment Group Z #1172
F HIZEEAFREFEFEMLE S RFEXY
e 2 #ITEE - Sam Ming Choy e A5 B 53 A28

Southern California University Bt & 983 2 T & B 1E+
B o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cai Shangwu, aged 41, was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company on 23rd February
2009, he has more than 18 years experience in
engineering, sales and marketing, and business
development in greater China region. Mr. Cai worked
in Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port responsible for technical and
engineering work from July 1990 to October 1994.
Mr. Cai also worked as the service manager for
Sisu Terminal Systems Pte Ltd from October 1995
to March 1998. Mr. Cai was the regional manager
of Renold Transmission Singapore from April 1998
to July 2001, and the chief representative officer of
Renold Transmission Singapore stationed in Beijing
from July 2001 to April 2004. Mr. Cai was the deputy
general manager who set up and operated the Renold
Transmission Shanghai Co., Ltd. from April 2004 to
August 2005, and became the general manager of
the company to oversee its business from August
2005 to November 2008. Mr. Cai holds a bachelor
of engineering degree from South China University of
Technology (EfI2 T K2 )and a master of science
degree from National University of Singapore (1% &
SIRE).

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 44, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company on 1st October 2009. Mr. Lai
has over 20 years of experience in the banking sector,
investments management and general management
of companies in China. Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of
China in Shenzhen during 1986 to 2001. During 1995
to 2001, he was the deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in
the securities industry. During 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of Shenzhen Huao Guanli
Technologies Company Limited (FIITEERE HEHE
FEAMR AT, Mr. Lai holds a certificate of graduation
in Chinese Language from Shenzhen Institute of
Education (RYIZEEZSET). Mr. Lai is the younger
brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling shareholder,
the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the
Company.

EEREREBAEBEZERE

ERREE 41m RZEZENF_A-T=AEZ
FERRBZHTES - BHREBISF L RNFEM
BT HERTEHEBEUREBER ZER - N
—NANZEFLAZE-NNAEFE+TA @ BELEFTBREK
BANE - AERMRIRREIE £EER AR
F+AZ—ANN\F=AHESisu Terminal Systems
Pte LtdZRBERE - BAAR—NNANFHAEZ
ZZT—F+ AT Renold Transmission Singapore &
B4R RZEE—FLAE_TENFMA LT
Renold Transmission Singapore Bt it R 2 BER K - 2
EER_ZENFNAZE_ZETRFNALGHIEL
w3 ’é%E%_L&,i&%f%%?ﬁibﬁﬁiﬁ(ixi)ﬁﬁﬁ
A RZZEZERFNREZEZNF+—ALEA

FEp g Eﬁﬁﬁﬁjiﬁ&C’%%i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁ
B TRREBTBN RIIMEET KB 2 IPEF T B -

BWREBEE 4m RN_FTEANFTA-BEZE
RARBZHITES - {BZI-EEP BERITR - RBEEHERK
TEEENERBA0F&ER - BEER —NJ/UR
FE_FT-FHREBRRFERITRIT DT - R

—jljﬁii?::??—iﬁﬁﬁﬁ CREBLEPERITZ
BTEFARREEE "B R_TT_F2-FTF
)\iﬁﬁfﬁ FESE A HER ﬂ‘lm% BAMKEXAR

NARIEIE—B - BAERERIEBESRFPEKR
FHEERSE - B A TILa Guanglin o (AR AR Z 4%
PRIRER ~ EFERIEMITES) 26 -

—ZZHFEFIHR Annual Report 2009

13



14

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Guanglin, aged 46, was appointed as Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company
on 23rd February 2009. Mr. Lai has extensive
experience in business development and venture
investment management. From 2000 to 2002, Mr.
Lai was the managing director of Shenzhen Keding
Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd., a venture
investment management company. In 2002, Mr. Lai
founded Ace Choice Management Limited, a company
that specialises in promoting business and investment
activities between the PRC and other countries. Mr. Lai
is currently the chairman of the board of directors of
Agria Corporation, a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. His wholly owned investment vehicle,
Brothers Capital Limited, is the largest shareholder of
Agria Corporation. Mr. Lai was also an independent
non-executive director of KXD Digital Entertainment
Ltd.,, a company listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange, during 29th May 2003 to 7th May 2009.
Mr. Lai holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Monash University, Australia. He is a certified public
accountant in Australia. Mr. Lai is the brother of Mr. Lai
Fulin, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. U Kean Seng, aged 43, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 23rd February
2009. Mr. U has more than 14 years of experience in
legal practice. Mr. U specialises in the area of corporate
law and corporate finance. Mr. U was admitted to
the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia in 1991, the
Singapore Bar in 1993 and the Roll of Solicitors for
England and Wales in 2009. Mr. U holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a bachelor’'s degree in
laws (Honours) from Monash University, Australia.
Mr. U currently holds the professional appointment
as the Head of Corporate and Legal Affairs of Agria
Corporation, a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Brothers Capital Limited, an investment
vehicle wholly-owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the
largest shareholder of Agria Corporation. Mr. U is an
independent director of GRP Limited, Miyoshi Precision
Limited and Ossia International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
Mr. U served as independent director of CPH Ltd
(formerly known as Circuits Plus Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange,
from December 2003 to July 2006, NTI International
Limited, a company listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange, from November 2004 to April 2007, New
Wave Holdings Ltd (formerly known as New Wave
Technologies Ltd), a company listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange, from December 2003 to July 2006,
Automated Touchstone Machines Limited, a company
formerly listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange,
from July 2005 to April 2007 and as non-executive
director of Radiance Group Limited (formerly known as
Radiance Electronics Limited), a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, from 21st November 2007
to 2nd December 2009.
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EERERE

Mr. Zhao Yue, aged 45, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 23rd February
2009, he has more than 20 years of management
experience. Mr. Zhao has served as the deputy general
manager of Agria Brothers Biotech (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. since August 2008 and as the chief operating
officer of Agria Corporation, a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, since December 2008.
Brothers Capital Limited, an investment vehicle
wholly-owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, is the largest
shareholder of Agria Corporation. Mr. Zhao was a
managing director of Yetop International Investment
Co., Ltd. in Hong Kong from July 2007 to August
2008. Prior to that, Mr. Zhao served as the executive
director and president of Lianhong Investment Co. Ltd
from October 2003 to July 2007; the vice president
of Bossen International Ltd from October 2001 to
September 2003; the executive vice president of
Bocom Group from October 2001 to September
2003; the vice president and chief operating officer
of Compass Pacific Holdings Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
from September 2000 to September 2001; and the
managing director of Yatton Group, a subsidiary of
Esquel Enterprises Ltd. from August 1995 to August
2000. Mr. Zhao holds a bachelor of engineering degree
in management information systems and a master of
engineering degree in industrial business administration
from Tsinghua University as well as a master degree in
economics from the State University of New York.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 43, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 23rd February 2009, he is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and member of Australia CPA
and Australasian Institute of Banking and Finance.
He holds a master of commerce degree, specializing
in Banking and Finance from the University of New
South Wales. With more than 19 years of experience
in PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst and Young, Mr.
Wong specializes in the area of auditing banks and
listed companies. Mr. Wong is an executive director of
Advance Step International Limited and an independent
director of Contel Corporation Limited, a company
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong
was also an independent director of Memory Devices
Limited, a company listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange from November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting, aged 42, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 23rd February 2009, he has approximately 19 years
of experience in investment, corporate finance and
business operation in Asia. Mr. Lau is currently a vice
president at Ivory Capital Private Limited, an investment
banking corporation in Hong Kong. Prior to that, Mr.
Lau had worked for different private companies and
listed groups including Seven Network Asia Limited,
Asia Logistics Technologies Limited, KPMG Corporate
Finance Limited, New World CyberBase Limited and
Cathay International Limited responsible for investment
and corporate finance functions. Mr. Lau started
his career in marketing and services at multinational
companies in industrial and consumer products. Mr.
Lau graduated with a bachelor of science degree in
civil and structural engineering and a master degree
in business administration from the University of Hong
Kong. He holds a bachelor of laws degree from the
University of London. Mr. Lau is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst® charter holder at CFA Institute in the
US.
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EEREREEBEAEZERE

Ms. Wu Xiuru, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 19th August 2009, she has extensive experience
in corporate planning and managements, accounting,
finance, auditing and project management. Ms. Wu
worked in various corporations and organisations in
China including Civil Aviation General Airline Company
(RfEMmAz=2A7), Administration of Civil Aviation
(Guangzhou) (R #1 E /N & 2 /B )and Guangzhou
Baiyun International Airport (BN A ZEEFR#LS ), etc.
Ms. Wu has been working as the chief accountant of
Guangdong Airport Management Corp. Ltd. (EER&A#
HEREENF]) since May 2006.

Ms. Wu holds a certificate of completion of post-
graduation study in management studies from the
South China University of Technology and a master of
business administration degree from Macau University
of Science and Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TSANG Wai Yip, Patrick, aged 41, was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company on 6th November 2009, he is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Tsang had held various
finance positions in a number of listed companies and
has over 19 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and corporate finance.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE

REUWKL 6% R-_ZEENFA\ATNLBEZE
RARBZBIUIFATES - FREXMRSINERE
g5t BE BINRAEBEEITOEARELR - R
LEERPEZHEARRAZIE  BERMBAM
ZRE - RMBEMNERREEMNA EEERIESS
“ETRFRAR RRET—BERERERGEREE
B AR EETED o

RELITFHAEMETAB 2 EETRMFKERIEEE
MEXFELRFRMBRAR 2 TRHERR T2 -

BREEAR

BRRXEE 4m R_ZEENF+-HARHER
ERAAFRERYBERLANE  BRABEEZA
RERREABHFARGHMAGZERGE - TRR
REMEB LB EE s - MAXRFR -
BEABRZA LM RARLETRNTBEY - £F
i @R REERETEES R T NFNES -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Churk Kai, aged 56, joined the Group in
1978 and is the managing director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. With over
32 years of experience in the trading of pipes, fittings
and other related accessories, he is responsible for the
development and supervision of the sales department.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of the Institute
of Plumbing and Heating Engineering (U.K.), Asian
Institute of Intelligent Buildings and the Hong Kong
Association of Energy Engineers. He is also a member
of Lions Club.

Ms. CHAN Yuk Fan, aged 46, joined the Group
in 1982 and is the sales director of the pipe trading
subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Ms. Chan is
responsible for the Group’s sales operations including
wholesale division, Hong Kong and Macau retail shops
and new product development. She is also responsible
for training new staff members of the sales and
marketing team of the Group. Ms. Chan has over 26
years of experience in the selling of pipes, fittings and
other related accessories.

Mr. LAl Kui Chung, aged 52, joined the Group
in 1979 and is the warehouse director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse and
transportation activities of the Group. He has over 30
years of experience in supervising warehouse and
transportation operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in
Store Supervision from a technical institute.

Mr. KU Chun Ming, aged 44, joined the Group in
1993 and is the associate sales director of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Ku has over 21 years of experience in sales and
marketing activities. He is responsible for the sales
and promotion activities including the exhibitions and
seminars.
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EEREREEBEAEZERE

Ms. LO Wai Yin, Susan, aged 51, joined the Group
in 1986 and is a shop general manager of the pipe
trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited. Ms.
Lo is responsible for the daily operations of the Group’s
retail shops. She is also responsible for training new
staff members or salesmen of the Group. Ms. Lo has
approximately 23 years of experience in the selling of
pipes, fittings and other related accessories.

Mr. CHAN Long Ping, Ryan, aged 48, joined the
Group in 1997 and is the senior sales manager of the
pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee (International) Limited.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in International
Relationship from Hong Kong International Affair
College in 2008 and has over 11 years of experience in
sales and planning. He is responsible for the sales and
marketing development.

Mr. CHAN Chi Man, Mann, aged 40, joined the
Group in 2009 and is currently the senior product
manager of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited. Mr. Chan has over 8 years of
experience in piping industry and is now responsible
for the sales and marketing development of the civil
engineering division of Bun Kee (International) Limited.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE

BERRL 515 R ANANFNALRKE - B
EESMBARMWRE (BER) ERARZEHELE -
EXTBEASETEEHCATERE - RITBESE
IAEEZHABBETIRETS - EXETRHER
B B REMRRR T MR 23 F AR o

BRFRE 8% R—ANEEMAXEER - B
EESMBARAWRE (BER) BRARZERIEE
I o FRICEN ZZ T\ FE Hongkong  International
Affair College 7R %5 BIRRBE R+ 5307 - RSB RKET
EES11F445%  BRHEERMISERIFE-

MEXSKE 405 R-ZETNAFMALER  BR
BEZESMB AR (BHE) BRARZEREEL
2o REAERE LXB8FARNMRBEWR (BK)
BRARMLATIZAMNHE R TIZERRTIE -



Corporate Governance Report

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of director of the Company
(the “Board”) and management maintain and enhance
the policies and practices of the Company on a timely,
transparency, effective and reasonable manner, so
as to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate
governance. The Company believes that good
corporate governance is not only in the interest of
shareholders and investors but also in the interest of
the Company. The Company will continue to raise the
standard to formalize the best practice of corporate
governance as far as we could.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31st December 2009,
except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were performed
by the same individual, Ms. Wing Man Yi, until her
resignation on 23rd February 2009. The Board met
regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company.

The Company has taken step to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code. On 23rd February 2009,
Mr. Lai Guanglin was appointed as the Chairman and
Non-executive Director of the Company. On 13th
May 2009, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng was appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.
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TEERKRE

Code Provision A.4.1

During the year, none of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company (excluding the independent
non-executive directors of the Company) is appointed
for a specific term, which constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1. However, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company pursuant
to Company’s bye-law 99 which was amended on
15th June 2006. As such, the Board considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices
are no less exacting than those in the provisions of
the Code. Nevertheless, in view of good corporate
governance practices, the non-executive directors of
the Company have, after year end, entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term from 20th
April 2010 to 31st December 2011 and that their term
of appointment will be limited accordingly. As such,
the Company has taken step to comply with the code
provision A.4.1 of the Code.

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE

PRI A4 1R

FA ARABREHJTES(TEBEBILIERTE
B)WEIBETEED - MEBRIRBETAIRSFEALIMGE -
AW BRER-_ZZRNFRATHBREIIZARRFA
AIE9F ARARZMAESAELIB=FHER
E—R > XIRARBZBERBFRE EEERET-
- EXERAERIEMNERBRARRZEERE
BEMTER TR - AT - ERREEEERT
MZER  NF/EE KARRZIFNTEFEARRT]
ERF—NEEE A Z-—TFEA-_THEEC
E——F+-A=t—Hi BWREZERZZER
AIRTER o FH it - AR REUE - T ST RIAR Z 57 R
X E A4 -



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31st December 2009, the Board had ten
members, comprising four executive Directors, Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng acting as Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, Mr. Sam Ming Choy acting as Chief
Operating Officer of the Company, Mr. Lai Fulin and Mr.
Cai Shangwu, three non-executive Directors, Mr. Lai
Guanglin acting as the Chairman of the Company, Mr.
U Kean Seng and Mr. Zhao Yue and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson,
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting and Ms. Wu Xiuru, one of whom
namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson has appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 12 to 20 of this annual report.

The Board has balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business.
The Board membership is covered by professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel to bring
in valuable contributions and different professional
advices and consultancy for development of the
Company. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the advice and services of the senior
management and the company secretary with a view to
ensuring the board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. The principal functions
of the Board are to supervise the management of the
business and affairs; to approve the strategic plans,
investment and funding decision; to review the Group’s
financial performance and operative initiatives.
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TEERKRE

The Board,
for the formulation of Group wide strategies and

led by the Chairman, is responsible
policies, including an oversight of the management.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the
executive Directors.

Mr. Lai Guanglin, the Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Company, is the brother of Mr. Lai
Fulin, an Executive Director of the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

As at the date of this report, each of the Non-executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-executive
Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company. All the Non-executive Directors
were appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals
since 13th May 2009. The roles of the Chairman are
separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.
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On 23rd February 2009, Mr. Lai Guanglin was
appointed as the Chairman and Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Lai Guanglin has taken up the
role of providing leadership for the Board and ensures
that the Board works effectively and discharge its
responsibility properly. With the support of Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
Mr. Lai also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. On
13th May 2009, Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng was appointed as
an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is responsible for managing the day-to-
day business of the Company.

Board Committees

A number of Board committees, including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise.
Audit committee and remuneration committee have
been formed with specific written terms of reference
which deals clearly with the committees’ authority and
duties.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a
year, additional meetings are convened when deemed
necessary by the Board. Board members are provided
with complete, adequate and timely information to
allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. In
addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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TEERKRE

The Board held eight meetings during the year ended BE_ZTZNE+-_A=1+—HILER ESEHET
31st December 2009. Due notice and board papers TNAREH - ARBEINBITESTGGEA - CIREST
were given to all Directors prior to the Board mestings Al7REMMMEESEFEIABANETE X H - R
in accordance to the Code. The attendance records of ZETNFRTNEFTE LR L ELEINNENT ¢

the Board meetings held in 2009 are set out below:

Attend/Eligible to attend

HERE SBHERE
Executive Directors BiTE=E
Ms. Wing Man Yi®ete BEST NG A ) 1/
Mr. Chan Wing Yuen, Hubert ot " Fef S I S A (i 1) 1/1
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard Mete ™) PR B 5 A (D) 1/
Mr. Zhu Yongjun ®ete ) KRB EE g A () 1/1
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer) Nte® MRESE (BEHITE) S 6/6
Mr. Lai Fulin Mete ) HB R B e HE (Hie) 3/3
Mr. Sam Ming Choy (Chief Operating Officer) 9 Sam Ming Choy St (&8 £4& &) M=o /7
Mr. Cai Shangwu Nete?) 2k R o A (i2) 3/7
Non-executive Directors ERMITEE
Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman) Mete? Lai Guanglin 9t 4 (£ /) 2) 7/7
Mr. U Kean Seng o2 SRR 4 A (D) 6/7
Mr. Zhao Yue MNote2) Y i S A () 5/7
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFRTES
Mr. Lui Tin Nang Mo B ARBESLAE ED 1/1
Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward Mete ™ = AR S A ) 1/1
Mr. Ho Yiu Yue Louis ™™ (ATHRHE 4 A () 11
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ot 2 B AS e A (2 6/7
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting Nete2 2B 5 5 A () 5/7
Ms. Wu Xiuru ®ete 9 o e e i) 2/5
Notes: Bt
1. Resigned on 23rd February 2009. 1. RIZETANF_AZ+=B8F-
2. Appointed on 23rd February 2009. 2. RIZETZNF-_AZ=+=HZfF-
3. Appointed on 13th May 2009. 3. RITZTAFRAT=RAZME-
4. Appointed on 19th August 2009. 4, RIZZETAFNATIBZEE-
5. Appointed on 23rd February 2009 and re-designated 5. RITETNFZAZ+=HZE URZZTZTNFhA

from independent non-executive Director to executive THARBYIIERTEFAT AR TES -
Director on 15th September 2009.

6.  Appointed on 1st October 2009. 6. RZZETZNFF+A—RHZE-
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TEERBRE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule (the
“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December
2009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee
which, as at the date of this report, consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Lau Kwok Ting and
Ms. Wu Xiuru. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson who has the appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting and financial
management expertise.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
as to the Company’s financial statements, reporting,
internal control, and audit findings. The Audit
Committee has met with the Company’s external
auditor to discuss the audit process and internal
control issues raised. A written terms of reference,
which describes the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee, are reviewed and updated by the Board
from time to time to comply with the code provision of
the Code.
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TEERKRE

For 2009, the Audit Committee reviewed with the
management and the Company’s internal and/or
external auditor, where applicable, their respective
audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, internal control and financial reporting
matters (including the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2008 and interim
financial statements for the period ended 30th June
2009 before recommending them to the Board for
approval). In particular, the Audit Committee monitored
the integrity of financial statements of the Company
and the annual report and accounts and interim report
and accounts of the Company, discussed such annual
report and audited accounts and interim report and
accounts with management and the Company’s
auditors, and reviewed significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and recommended

to the Board for approval of the 2009 audit fees and re-
appointment of the auditor of the Company.
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TEERBRE

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the BE-T ﬂ¢+ A= ‘|’ BIFFER BZEE
year ended 31st December 2009. The attendance 551177 REH - NZETNFRITHNEZEZE
records of the Audit Committee meetings held in 2009 RO ECEAE T

are set out below:

Attend/Eligible to attend

HERY, SEHERE
Name of members 1541 21
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson (Chairman) HAMERE(EE) 2/2

(appointed on 23rd February 2009) (R-EENF-H-—+=HZF)

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting (appointed on 23rd February 2009) AEEEE (R=ZFENF-AZF=AZF) 2/2
Ms. Wu Xiuru (appointed on 19th August 2009) RENRT (R=FEANF\AF+NAZE) 0/1
Mr. Sam Ming Choy (resigned on 15th September 2009) Sam Ming Choy 5t (R=ZFZE /N 4F /1. A+ A A T) 11
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FlEES

The Company has established a Remuneration ARNRERYFMEE S - RABREHE  HNEE
Committee. As at the date of this report, the RO EHAK  BREZUBIIERTEET=IUE
Remuneration Committee comprises four members fE - BRERERRFMLTR—MIERNTESER
including the three Independent Non-executive BRAE c TERRERALLEEIT - FMEE2E 2
Directors, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Lau ESTRIRMEMEBESE -

Kwok Ting and Ms. Wu Xiuru and one Non-executive

Director, Mr. U Kean Seng. It is chaired by Mr. U Kean

Seng. A written terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee has been adopted with the reference to the

Code.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for YME-EeaERE AN TRTES LSBT EE Y
reviewing and recommending remuneration packages FTMITIREHERATESTE - ARAIZIEHNITEE Y
of the Executive Directors and senior management HWNIHESEET -

of the Company to the Board. The remuneration
packages of the Non-executive Directors of the
Company are determined by the Board.
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TEERKRE

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings Eﬂzi EENF+_A=Z+—HFRN FNEZESHE
during the year ended 31st December 2009. At the T Mgz  RZTEZTHFMA - :ggﬂinﬂ
meetings held in April 2009, September 2009 and TEENFE+ AR EL FNEZESRE

November 2009, the remuneration policy, remuneration @JHIEA( CEFLEREEABZY @H& EALVEH 5T 7R
packages and bonus arrangements of the Directors EitE - R—ZEZNF+— B -_tRBERT22%
and senior management have been discussed and b mEE SREBAERNMEEERRLBIRE
approved. At the meeting held on 25th November EHZ B ML fE -

2009, the proposal for grants of share options to

Directors, senior management and employees were

considered and approved.

The attendance records of the Remuneration R-TZTZNEFEROTNTWNEE S L ERRG S

Committee meetings held in 2009 are set out below: T~
Attend/Eligible to attend
HEXRS SHRHERE
Name of members 34-1: 31
Mr. U Kean Seng (Chairman) R A (E/F) 4/4
(appointed on 23rd February 2009) (R=ZFENF=ZA=1+=HZF)
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BLAMERAE 4/4
(appointed on 23rd February 2009) (R=ZFBZENF-H -+ =HZ)
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting (appointed on 23rd February 2009)  BIBIE R (R-FEZENF A=+ =HZ(F) 4/4
Ms. Wu Xiuru (appointed on 19th August 2009) REWML T (R=ZFZENFNAFTNLAZHE) 2/3

Mr. Sam Ming Choy (resigned on 15th September 2009) Sam Ming Choy %4 (R = FZAF /N A+F HFE) 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the
Company. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises four members including the
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong
Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Lau Kwok Ting and Ms. Wu
Xiuru and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Lai
Guanglin. It is chaired by Mr. Lai Guanglin.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is
making recommendations to the Board on appointment
and removal of directors and management of Board
succession.

In assessing nomination of new Directors, the
Nomination Committee has taken into consideration
of the candidate’s qualification, ability and potential
contribution to the Group. The Nomination Committee
has considered the past performance, experience and
qualification of directors, general market conditions and
practices and the Company’s bye-laws in selecting and
recommending directors for retirement by rotation.

TEERBRE
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TEERKRE

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during BEZZTTENFT-_A=1+—HILFER  1£4
the year ended 31st December 2009. The attendance BEIToREH N_TTHNFERTHWIERLSE
records of the Nomination Committee meetings held in S E AR FH N

2009 are set out below:

g

=
=

I8 18

Attend/Eligible to attend

HEXRS SHRHERE
Name of members 34131
Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman) Lai Guanglin o4 (/&) 2/2
(appointed on 23rd February 2009) (R=ZFENF-A=1+=HZF)
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BLAMERAE 2/2
(appointed on 23rd February 2009) (RZFBZENF-H -+ =HZ)
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting (appointed on 23rd February 2009)  BIBIE R4 (R - FEEANF A -+ =HZF) 2/2
Ms. Wu Xiuru (appointed on 19th August 2009) RFMBZT(RZFZENFENATILAZE) 0/1
Mr. Sam Ming Choy Sam Ming Choy 54 1/1
(resigned on 15th September 2009) (R=ZFZFNF/NLA+TAFE)

The Nomination Committee discussed and reviewed REZESHANREETRZAKMEMBEEEE
the Board composition of the Company as well as BT st et o o IREBEEeNREFARE
other related matters. In addition, the Nomination =ZRFEZEIAETTSam Ming Choy St RETEME

Committee recommended the re-designation of Mr. o REZLEeWNEFETHRBIYIFNTEEN
Sam Ming Choy and the appointment of other directors bRV

to the Board for approval during the year under review.
The Nomination Committee also conducted an annual
review of the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
system of internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The system of internal
controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure
the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. It is
also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that material misstatement or loss can be
avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in

operation systems.

The Board engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler Consulting
Limited (“RSM Nelson Wheeler”) to perform internal
audit function to assess the effectiveness of the
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions of the Company and the
Group’s major subsidiaries on a rotation basis.

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 12th
April 2010, RSM Nelson Wheeler had reported their
review work for the year ended 31st December 2009
performed in accordance with the detailed risk-
based audit plan which was approved by the Audit
Committee. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems for the year ended
31st December 2009. The Audit Committee members,
together with the senior management, have also
reviewed, considered and discussed all findings relating
to the internal control systems and recommendations
for improvement.

TEERBRE

AERASEER —EROA R AEBEHIFR
E,ﬁx&? REEHI RSB RES 2 EZ
RERE  BRABEIIMNSREZE
= /{&TJ&{%LTMHEJZ%W&%%WW HR &SI
ARSI AR (MIEBY)RELEME R LRBEERR
HIERNER - WEER MREEER S LR

EXeCZBEERTHFABERARAR([EFX D@
MEARRBRAEE s X EMBRARETARELESE
% S EE  EFERE  aREEMRREED
BEE T AT TRT AR o

Ly 2
EE%D% !

N

MEZZEER " EFNA+TABTIERS

FRERBE—DUARRAER Fﬁfﬁ%uﬁﬁ
HREGTE(KERZEGIE) FRETEZR
NE+TZ_A=+—HLFENRENIERNEZZES
[ - EE S EREZZEERIBE_TTNSF
TZA=T—BLEFENSERNBEIESIERR - T
RZEEMENESRERETEHRE  EBELEHE
R AR EERG  AEERRIRHE 2 ERIED

FIEm e

—7?

—ZZHFEFIHR Annual Report 2009

33



34

Corporate Governance Report

TEERKRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on
the scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the
year ended 31st December 2009, the remunerations
to the auditor of the Company were approximately
HK$1,325,000 for audit services and HK$42,500 for
non-audit services comprising tax services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. The senior management
provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company.

The responsibilities of the auditor of the Company with
respect to the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 to
52.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective
and fair communication with shareholders of the
Company. Information is conveyed to the shareholders
of the Company on a timely basis. The Company
uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business
imperatives. These include general meetings, annual/
interim reports, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Such documents are sent to all shareholders
of the Company and/or its nominees and accessible on
the Company’s website. The detailed procedures for
conducting a poll has been explained by the chairman
at the commencement of general meetings.

Shareholders’ views on matters that affect the
Company are welcomed by the Board at shareholders’
meetings. Shareholders of the Company are notified of
shareholders’ meetings through notices and reports or
circulars sent to them. Each item of special business
in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where
appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed
resolution. A separate resolution is proposed by the
chairman of the meetings in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-election of Directors. The
Chairman of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees or failing this his duly appointed delegate,
are available at the meetings to answer those questions
in regard to the work of these committees.
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Report of the Directors

EEERSE

The Directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December 2009 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 53.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 168.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2009, reserves of the Company
available for distribution, including the contribution
surplus, amounted to HK$34,647,000 (2008:
HK$57,865,000). Details of the distributable reserves
of the Company are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st
December 2009 are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Other than the issue of 800,000,000
shares by the Company during the year, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
24th June 2004, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
of the Company was approved by shareholders of the
Company. Relevant information relating to the Scheme
is set out as follows:

(@ Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
and/or rewarding the participants.
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Report of the Directors

EEERSE

Participants of the Scheme

The board of Director (the “Board”) may offer to
grant options to the participants which means
(i) any Director (including any executive director,
non-executive director or independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group;
(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time)
of any member of the Group; (iii) any consultant,
adviser, supplier, customer or sub-contractor of
the Group; and (iv) any other person whatsoever
from time to time determined by the Board as
having contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the
general meeting of the Company approving the
Scheme. The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including exercised
or outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of grant.
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()

()

(9)

(h)

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
specified in the relevant offer letter.

Period and payment an acceptance of options
Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by
the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the option within 28 days from the date of grant
of the option.

Basis determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share in respect of
any particular option granted under the Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to the participants and shall be at
least the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at
general meeting or by the Board, the life of the
Scheme commenced from 24th June 2004, date
of adoption, and will end on 23rd June 2014.

(e)

()

(9)

(h)
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Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed or REZA - RIBFTEIRE - 176 K80 FEX
cancelled and outstanding under the Scheme MARITENBRE Z BT -

during the year are as follows:

Held as at 1st Granted Held as at 31st
January 2009 and accepted December 2009
RZBENE C R At g Lapsed/  W-BEBAE
-A-H (Note 6) Exercised cancelled +ZA=+-H
Name of Directors EEhkg B8 (Mizxe6) Bifff B&N/CEH 2]
Lai Fulin M4 eyl - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000
Sam Ming Choy Mted Sam Ming Choy =2 - 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000
U Kean Seng "I REERL 0 - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Zhao Yue e i - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson Mot ) Az D - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Lau Kwok Ting M Bl ) - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
W Xiury tete2 RAHwE) - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Employees 3] - 402,000,000 - - 402,000,000
- 592,000,000 - - 592,000,000
Notes: BRE:
1. Appointed as executive Directors/ non-executive 1. TENF_A+=BEEANTES, I
Director/independent non-executive Directors on $ﬂﬁ§$/ B IEMITES ©
23rd February 2009.
2. Appointed as independent non-executive 2. RIZZETNFNATINBZEAEBIIENTE
Director on 19th August 2009. E
3. Appointed as independent non-executive Director 3. )50227\271¢ B+ =HZEABINIT=E
on 23rd February 2009 and re-designated to 2 WR_ZETEAFNATRAATAHITE
executive Director on 15th September 2009. E
4. Appointed as executive Director on 1st October 4. RIZZNFTA—BHZERNTES -
2009.
5. Pursuant to the Scheme, a total of 592,000,000 5. R¥EETE] - A4$£592,000,000 REREER=Z
share options were granted on 3rd December ;?71¢+_ﬂ = HEL - WED| Lz A AR
2009 and accepted by the above grantees, CITEEAR0OTIBIIL IR T —ZTF XA
with an exercise price of HK$0.071 and = EI ET-NFTZAZALBAMTE -
are exercisable from 2nd June 2010 to 2nd
December 2019.
6.  Vesting of options granted to certain employees 6. BTETEEZEREEZEINBEHIES
are subject to achievement of profit target. FTHEBEEE -
7. The closing price of the shares immediately 7. RONRBEBRERDEBAKMHER0.0704 7%
before the date on which the share options were JC °

granted was HK$0.0704.

40 China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

Details of the fair value of options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2009
and the accounting policy adopted for the options
are set out in note 8 and note 2(r)(iv) to the financial
statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cai Shangwu Mo

Ms. Wing Man Yi®ete )

Mr. Chan Wing Yuen, Hubert Nete

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard M

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (Nete )

Mr. Sam Ming Choy (Chief Operating Officer) Note9)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer) M9
Mr. Lai Fulin Mote®l

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lai Guanglin (Chairman) Nete2)
Mr. U Kean Seng M2

Mr. Zhao Yue Nete2)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson Mete2

Mr. Lau Kwok Ting Mete2

Mr. Lui Tin Nang et "

Mr. Ko Ming Tung, Edward Mete ™

Mr. Ho Yiu Yue Louis Nete

Ms. Wu Xiuru Nete 4

EREZE_TZENF T+ A=+ —HEFEREEZ
BHBERENAAEBREEBRENSSTHRRNFE
7 R B BA RS ER AR BT RE 8 S PR 2(r)(v) ©

EFRBRHREFHER

BAD 2 MR AESBIS A A EARR - AR
AREEANEA SRS R AR KA
N A M 7 ) A 2 T R £ 1
S -

¥

FARBEEARETIEABMZARAESER

BITES

22k b o A (H2)

AT (a1 4 (D

Fef 5K IR 51 A (i D)

MR B o A (M)

LR BB 4 A (i)

Sam Ming Choy Jt 4 (B /E £4& 5 ) ite)
BT E L (BT ) Wi

PRI Bk 4 A (ize)

FHITES

Lai Guanglin e 4 (£ /&) "+#2)
R 4 A (i)
)

BAYFHTES
= A S e (Ha2)
2 B 7 4 A (i)
B R BE 4L A ()
=R B 4 A (D
(AR 4 A (et )
BFE L4 W
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Notes:

1. Resigned on 23rd February 2009.

2. Appointed on 23rd February 2009.

3. Appointed on 13th May 2009.

4. Appointed on 19th August 2009.

5. Appointed on 23rd February 2009 and re-designated

from independent non-executive Director to executive
Director on 15th September 2009.
6. Appointed on 1st October 2009.

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of
the Company, Mr. Cai Shangwu, Mr. Zhao Yue and
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting will retire from office by rotation.
Mr. Lau Kwok Ting has notified the Company that he
will not offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting due to his other personal
commitments, Mr. Cai Shangwu and Mr. Zhao Yue,
being eligible will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws of
the Company, Mr. Lai Fulin and Ms. Wu Xiuru will hold
office until the next following annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management section of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has entered into any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its
holding company was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered by the
Group during the year ended 31st December 2009 are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates
has an interest in any business which competes or
may complete with the business in which the Group
engaged.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2009, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
“SFO”) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out as

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

below:

(i) Interest in the Company

Number of underlying
shares held pursuant

Personal interests
in shares

B ZEAER

Name of Directors

EERS

Lai Fulin R 1@ % -
Sam Ming Choy -
U Kean Seng /R -
Zhao Yue i -
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson & LA {5 -
Lau Kwok Ting 2IEF -
Wu Xiuru 25528 -

Note: These interests are held in the capacity as a
beneficial owner.

The interests of the Directors in the share options
of the Company as beneficial owner are also
set out in the section headed “Share Options
Scheme” above.
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EEREG IRRMRASFZHEIRNKE

RZZBZNF+ZA=+—H ARAIEZRERTT
EA ?a‘ﬂizl?iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁwil(m%ﬁ BH5 K EE
16450 ([ 355 R EAE 0] ) 8B XV ER) BBk - MR &
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FE 32 FE 2 F Mo Emdoks - shERE EiE
TAZESHTEBSF R HAFREFR([FEFR D Mg
RAR MR S TORB AT ¢

() REQFzHEHE

Approximate
percentage
of shares in issue

BEREREREZ Total interests B RTRG
HHERER B E HEa #HHaEst
50,000,000 50,000,000 (Noteffiz) 0.375%
50,000,000 50,000,000 (Noteffsit) 0.375%
30,000,000 30,000,000 (Noteftii) 0.225%
30,000,000 30,000,000 (Noteftizt) 0.225%
10,000,000 10,000,000 (Notett) 0.075%
10,000,000 10,000,000 (Notefii) 0.075%
10,000,000 10,000,000 (Notetiz) 0.075%
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(i) Long position in shares of the Company (i) RERAZBROEEZHER

Approximate

percentage

Number of shares of the Company of Shares

b YNG4 3t Number of in issue

Personal Family Corporate Other  shares held {LEBfT

Name of Directors  Capacity Interests  Interests Interests Interests sERA B

EEty 0] EARE REHS LTS Hftiiga #H [=h:]i4

Lai Guanglin Beneficial owner - 7,705,521,207 (ot 11D - 7,705,521,207 57.79%
EREEA

Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner 30,000,000 1,460,000,000 (rete2fi=2) - 1,490,000,000 11.18%
BIRE EREEA

Notes: FEE:
1. These Shares are held by Singapore Zhongxin 1. ZEZRKH A Singapore Zhongxin Investment

Investment Company Limited (“Singapore
Zhongxin”), which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Lai deemed to be interested in
such shares under the SFO.

These Shares are held by King Jade Holdings
Limited (“King Jade”), which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an
executive Director of the Company. Accordingly,
Mr. Yu deemed to be interested in such shares
under the SFO.

Company Limited ([ Singapore Zhongxin 1) #3754
% /AR Lai Guanglin St (R AR ZIEMITES
RER)ZEERZES - At - REFHFREE
&5+ Lai B EWIR B Z SR P A s o

2. #ZEMWfrKing Jade Holdings Limited ([King
Jade) F5 - ARIHAILELE (KRR ZH
TER)2EERME - At REESFRE
&G - TR ARNZERO P HEER o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2009, the interests or short
positions of the following persons or corporations,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the
Company

Name of Shareholders Capacity

BRAE 57

Singapore Zhongxin (1ot 272 Beneficial owners
BRERA

Li Juan g (note3iiizs) Interest of spouse
Ao B

King Jade (nete4#4) Beneficial owners
BHEAEBA

Zhang Lin (notesHs) Interest of spouse
[

Notes:

1. “L” denotes a long position in shares.

2. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly and beneficially owned

by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

3. Ms. Li Juan, the spouse of Mr. Lai, is also deemed to
be interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under
the SFO.

4. King Jade is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yu
Ben Ansheng, an Executive Director of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in such
shares under the SFO.

5. Ms. Zhang Lin, the spouse of Mr. Yu, is also deemed to
be interested in Mr. Yu’s interest in the Company under
the SFO.
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1,460,000,000 (L) 10.95%
1,490,000,000 (L) 11.18%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2009,
the Company had not been notified by any persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
—the largest supplier 15.53%
— five largest suppliers combined 41.46%
Sales
— the largest customer 5.03%
— five largest customers combined 18.04%

None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21
to 35 for details.

Details of the audit committee and remuneration
committee are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee currently consists of three
independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Lau Kwok Ting and Ms.

Wu Xiuru.

By reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the HKICPA, written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of
the audit committee were prepared and adopted by the
Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of significant events which have been taken
place subsequent to the balance sheet date are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT LRERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the BIBARNF RSz AHERUNMGEESZNA R4
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, WEBH - RAAR®ES ETRAFRE BRG] ARFE
the Company has maintained the prescribed public fgE o

float required under the Listing Rules as at the date of

this report.

AUDITOR 4 (0

The financial statements have been audited by KEEHRARCER ERCBESTAIEBEZ - %%
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, BN EmER - ABIK LEEEIRET -
offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board EEEGW

Lai Guanglin Ex

Chairman Lai Guanglin

Hong Kong, 20th April 2010 B —E-ZFMNA=1+H
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PRICEAATERHOUSE( QOPERS

BEBKESTEERR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 53
to 167, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31st December 2009, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBEMRES

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31st December 2009
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th April 2010

China Pipe Group Limited #EIE%&£@EBERATE
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains/(losses), net

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

Dividend

Consolidated Income Statement

mERER

For the year ended 31st December 2009
BE-TTNF+-A=+HLLEE

2009 2008
ZEENE —EEN\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE Fi#T T
A 5 453,785 701,766
SHER A (381,077) (534,856)
EH 72,708 166,910
HAplzs/(E518) /58 6 9,670 (58,572)
SHE Ko SHRC AN (12,705) (18,968)
—RITE B (99,668) (112,627)
K B e 7 (29,995) (23,257)
B & FF 5 9 (12,985) (13,611)
TR E1E (42,980) (36,868)
fimiEe, (i) 10 3,583 (5,728)
FEEE (39,397) (42,596)
FEfh

RATREREB A (39,662) (42,596)
DHRRAERS 265 =
(39,397) (42,596)
HK cents HK cents
-2} I

S EE 12
AERREE (0.31) (0.34)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET T
e 13 - 2,507

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of F60E 167 B 2 MBI EHH K 2 AR E D ©

these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEZERER

For the year ended 31st December 2009
BE-TENF+-A=+HLEE

2009 2008

d==1- =5 §- 2 T N\F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

FfaE THT FHIT

Loss for the year FEEE (39,397) (42,596)
Other comprehensive income: Hfh 2w

Currency translation differences B E =5 576 12,144

Total comprehensive income for the year — FE 2 EW S5 (38,821) (30,452)

Attributable to: FE1G:

Equity holders of the Company RRRIIRERE A (39,092) (30,452)

Minority interest DR RS 271 =

(38,821) (30,452)

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of F60ZFE 167 B 2 Mzt Rt FH ¥k 2 AARE S o
these financial statements.
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Goodwill

Investment properties

Deferred tax assets

Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held-for-sale

Total assets

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

RE

FREBRE

ME -~ BB KEE
TR

[k

WEME
EETRIREE
Bake MEMEE

mERE

FE

B 5 K EAD R IR
BAREER

BRI FEE

A E IR
EHRERITER
ReRREFED

FELEEE

HaE

Note

)
St
Fh

14
15
16
17
28
21

20
21

1€

22
23

24

heEERER

As at 31st December 2009
RZETZNF+=_HA=1+—H

31st December | 31st December
2009 2008
—ETNE —ETN\F
+=RA=+—A8 |+=ZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FATT
118,485 11,791
30,535 -
22,787 -
185,231 295,498
11,761 -
3,061 972
371,860 308,261
180,448 260,337
163,440 189,374

- 22,493

- 893

38,576 20,000
55,784 19,476
438,248 512,573
114,680 -
552,928 512,573
924,788 820,834

F60ZE 167 B2 A EMIEHmER 2 AR o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31st December 2009
RZZETNF+=_HA=1+—H

31st December | 31st December
2009 2008
ZEThE —EENF
+=-RA=+—HB |T=A=1—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TET T
EQUITY Ba
Equity holders BEBEA
Share capital (&N 25 26,665 25,065
Reserves — others it — Eth 26 388,385 379,559
415,050 404,624
Minority interest DEERER 33,093 -
Total equity HEs 448,143 404,624
LIABILITIES 2R
Non-current liabilities ERBAMR
Loan from a shareholder REER 33 - 29,651
Borrowings BE 27 39,973 134,155
Deferred tax liabilities EIENIR AR 28 18,736 1,097
58,709 165,803
Current liabilities meEna R
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIR 29 95,691 83,223
Amount due to a related company e —REE A RFIA 33 23,449 1,994
Amount due to a minority shareholder e —AL D ER R FIR 133 -
Loan from a shareholder IR R B 33 59,881 =
Taxation payable FES I8 631 5,180
Borrowings BE 27 238,151 160,010
417,936 250,407
Total liabilities HaE 476,645 416,210
Total equity and liabilities HESRaR 924,788 820,834
Net current assets mEEERE 134,992 262,166
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDAR 506,852 570,427
Lai Guanglin Yu Ben Ansheng Lai Guanglin BRE
Director Director 2 o

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of F£ 602 167 AT A S0 iEHRE 2 485 -
these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEEEXR

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables,
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity holders
Share capital
Reserves — others

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loan from a shareholder

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Loan from a shareholder

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Lai Guanglin
Director

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

BE
FREEE
REB LR RIRE

mENEE
B - AR
H At R IR
JRE W B /o8 . R FRIR
BAREBEES
BRI B EE
L {EIE
Re MRSFEY

HAE

o
BRiESBEA
[EEN
bt — H At

HEo

ffR

FRBAR
RRE R
mENRR

H At A 5R0R
JEAS BB A B FIR
BRER

HAR
HERIRAR
RENEE R
HRERRBRR

Yu Ben Ansheng

As at 31st December 2009

RZZEZTNFF+=—A=+—H

2009 2008
ZEThE —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B s THT FABT
18 96,901 96,901
21 403 208
18 256,724 219,433
19 - 22,493
- 415
23 877 474
258,004 243,023
354,905 339,924
25 26,665 25,065
26 161,983 137,283
188,648 162,348
88 - 29,651
29 1,200 2,053
18 105,176 145,872
Be 59,881 -
166,257 147,925
166,257 177,576
354,905 339,924
91,747 95,098
188,648 191,999

Lai Guanglin BRE

EFE B

F60ZE 167 B2 At EMIEHmER 2 AKX o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31st December 2009
BE-TTNF+-A=+—HILEE

Equity holders
RigHaA
Share
based
Share  Share Capital Merger Exchange payment Retained Minority

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interest  Total
UkhE 8

B ROER #PEE AHGE ERMHARNAR GERY 0t RRHE 48

Note HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i TET TERT TER TER TET TERT TER TER TET TER

At 1st January 2008 RZEENF-F-A 26065 79418 34,115 3,700 4,199 - 301,112 447,609 - 447,609
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - [425%) (42,5%) - (425%)
Other comprehensive income: A 2B -
Curency translation diferences ~ EHAEZE - - - - 1214 - - 1214 - 12144
Total comprehensive EE2AkE
income for the year g - - - - 12144 - (4259) (30,452 - (30459
Dhidend i - - - - - - (1253 (12599 - (125%)
At 31st December 2008 R-ZENE+-A=1-H 26006 79418 34115 3700 16343 - 245983 404,624 - 404,624
At 1st January 2009 RZEENF-RA-H 25065 79418 34115 3700 16,343 - 245983 404,624 - 404,624
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - (39662 (39662 265 (39,307
Other comprehensive income: ~ E 2
Curency translation diferences ~ EHAEZE - - 5710 - - 570 576
Total comprehensive EE2AkE
income for the year g - - - - 570 - (39662 (39,009 271 (38821)
Issue of new shares for an TR
acquisition of a subsiclary —FHEAA 25,2 1,600 47,200 - - - - - 48800 - 48800
Share based payment IR BERRA - - - - -8 -8 -8
Acqisition of a subsidiary YE—F B 34 - - - - - - - - 0282 282
1,600 47,200 - - - 718 - 49518 32822 82340
At 315t December 2009 RIBENE
+ZA=t-H 2,665 126618 34,115 3700 16913 718 206,321 415050 33,093 448,143

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of F 60X 167 B 2 Mzt Rt F0 ik 2 K E S o

these financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Loan from a shareholder

Amount due to a related company
Dividends paid to equity holders
Increase in pledged bank deposit

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash,
cash equivalents and bank overdrafts
Exchange differences
Cash, cash equivalents and bank
overdrafts at beginning of the year

Cash, cash equivalents and
bank overdrafts at end of the year

The notes on pages 60 to 167 are an integral part of

these financial statements.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BERBZHERE

REXGEL RS
BERFHE

BYHE
ERFAEHR

RETBME
ReFa

RERBZRERE

BANE - BELEE
HEWE - BE K&
FfSs0R
BAREMF
WE—FMBLR

REDBMARSHE
RETDZRERE

BN —RRERRFA

BIRBERAAZRE

ERRITFFE I

REEE (), Fis
ReFa

e BReFEMR

BITBELIEM OB ) F5

5 R
FRE  ReF
BYRRITEX

FHRZES HeF
RMRBRITEX

mERTRER

For the year ended 31st December 2009
BE-TTNF+-A=+HLLEE

Note
B aE

32(b)

2009 2008
ZEENE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&TT
111,067 63,216
(7,049) (13,642)
110 190
(4,212) (6,533)
99,916 43,231
(4,098) (2,207)
- 549
- (71,080)
(21,128) =
(25,226) (72,738)
238,232 132,822
(320,785) (117,381)
24,868 29,651
22,869 =
- (12,533)
(1,428) (20,000)
(36,244) 12,559
38,446 (16,948)
22 1,001
17,316 33,263
55,784 17,316

£ 60 =167 B 2RI FEEME 2 BKER D -

—ZETAFFHR Annual Report 2009
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(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading of construction
materials, mainly pipes and fittings,
manufacturing and sale of seamless pipes and

property investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Harmilton HM 12, Bermuda. The
Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

During the past two years, the major changes in
the Group are as follows:

On 15th October 2008, Maxable International
Enterprises Limited and Interchina Holdings
Limited entered into agreements to dispose of all
their shares in the Company to an independent
third party, Singapore Zhongxin Investment
Company Limited (“Singapore Zhongxin”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and wholly owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin. The
agreements were completed on 27th October
2008 and 6th February 2009 respectively and
Singapore Zhongxin then owned 74.25% equity
interest in the Company and become the ultimate

holding company.

On 11th November 2009, the Group completed
the acquisition of 60% equity interest in/E=%
memgfE AR AR (“Jnyufeng”) for cash
consideration of RMB18 milion and issue of
800,000,000 new shares of the Company.

Goodwill of approximately HK$22,266,000

arose as a result of the acquisition. Details of the
acquisition are set out in Note 34.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

(i)

—RE#H

hEEEEBERAR ((ARF ) REHBAF
(678 [ A ) X BEFREN B (ZERRE
MEN) 2B LERBEREAETURDE
1 -

ARRA—HEAREIMKXILZ2ERAR @ 7
== EE A7 Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda ° NA RIEEBELS
REFBRAR([BBERAT]) ERIEE— L
T o

BEMF  AEBZTEEHMOT

RZZEZENF+A+HHE  Maxable International
Enterprises Limited E2EfR 138 B PR A RIFT AL 173
% BUHEREERARAZ2ERN T8
2 =75 Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company
Limited ([ Singapore Zhongxin|) ° Singapore
ZhongxinfA B 4 R = BE 5 = M A 2 I /B Lai
Guanglinft £2 8% E - ZZHhE O IR =
NE+A=Z+EtAR=ZZTTNF_ABZEK
Singapore Zhongxin # M #5842 &) 74.25% A& A%
Rz K AR AR A A ©

R=ZZNF+—A+—8  A5BE=RKEZE
EeRLeEENESRAR ([£HME]) 2 60%M
RS - A AR 18,000,000 702 IR & (B K 3
7800,000,000 f& A~ I HIFTAZ (R ©

BRI s B 1 S AE R 4 22,266,000 /8 7T  WEEEF 1B
M EF 34 WAL EE ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

2.

B ISR AR AL

WREEREHRER

TXHIRB TR AW FREGRAZ TR
TR © BRIESBATAL - FIERAMBER R 2
MBEFE—H -

2N
=
#H

RAMBHRREKREZESTMAS ([FEES
EhAE ) R BB RS ER ([ BBHER
SRR ) AEEXAERIRS - ERERIR DA

BEEBBRSIIRNMBEERRENERAA
EBEJIRMELERT] °

ERBBMBREENRHSBEHRER - AREMA
ETRRNEHET  TRETEEERALS
B S HRABEPELHE - P RSE A
BEEMENSEIEGAMBEHRRBEARE
MEE SIS - K T4 AREE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRS, which are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial

Statements
HKAS 27 and Cost of an Investment
HKFRS 1 in a Subsidiary, Jointly
(Amendments) Controlled Entity
or Associate
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment —
(Amendment) Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments —
(Amendment) Disclosures
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfer of Assets from

Customers

Annual Improvements  Improvements to
Project HKFRSs

The Group has assessed the impact of the
adoption of these new and revised standards,
amendments to existing standards and
interpretation and considered that there was no
significant impact on the Group’s results and
financial position nor any substantial changes in
the Group’s accounting policies and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements except
the following.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

WEEEREETER ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards
(cont’d)

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The revised standard prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses
(that is ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-
owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity. All
‘non-owner changes in equity’ are required to be
shown in a performance statement.

Entities can choose whether to present one
performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements
(the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected
to present two statements: a consolidated
income statement and a consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the revised disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments”. HKFRS 8
replaces HKAS 14, “Segment Reporting”. It
requires a ‘management approach’ under which
segment information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting purposes.
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.

B ISR AR AL

WEEEREETER ()

BRANHTZE B R RS T R ()

BRGENFIR(EEBR) [MHHRERNZ
] BEFTER IR EREHRAZTIWA
KFAXIER (BN [EMAEERRED])  HE [3F
EERaZY | ARMAERZESIHZ
5o P [SEFTAE#GEE | ARFERRT 2
5l

ERTRELS —HRERE (RERER) A/
8% (R R 2 ERER) - AEBERES7)
MHEE  FAUGERREA 2EREER - 52
PSR VRIS IS 2 RIS -

BAEMBHRELRNESR [LENE] - BEYH
HREERBSRIMABEB G LERIFE 1457 5 #B
H-ERERABIEEESR] Bt 28
BRHZAMERRA 2 HRELEZS - £ENSE
ZEEH A ER T EEERRE N 2 NEPER
FIRMEER - TREERRECERER
EHRBEIEAE 2 EES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards
(cont’d)

The following new and revised standards,
amendments to existing standards and
interpretation have been published and are
relevant to the Group’s operation. They are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2010 or later
periods, the Group has not early adopted them:

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial

Statements
HKFRS 1 Additional Exemption for
(Amendment) First-time Adopters
HKFRS 2 Group Cash Settled
(Amendment) Share-based Payment

Transaction
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash

Assets to Owners

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting

policies (cont’d)

Adoption of new and revised standards

(cont’d)
Annual improvements to HKFRS published in
May 2009
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
(Amendment) Statements
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
(Amendment)
HKAS 17 Leases
(Amendment)
HKAS 18 Revenue
(Amendment)
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
(Amendment)
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets
(Amendment)
HKAS 39 Financial Instrument :
(Amendment) Recognition and
Measurement
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
(Amendment)
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
(Amendment) for Sale and
Discontinued
Operations
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
(Amendment)

The Group has already commenced an

assessment of the impact of these new and

revised standards,

amendments to existing

RUBERE

B ISR AR AL

RHEER (48)

BRANHTZE B R RS T R ()

R-ZETZNFHEAR

fE ek

B4R
EREACCHD)
e R
ENEACCHD)
%’/%/\* A Elj
ERVATACCTD)
B AR
FE185: (1£5])
e R
%365k (1£5])
BE AR
25 3855k (185])
BB G LR
2539 5% (187])

i?/%ﬁﬁ& SR

5 25% (125])

BB B RE LR 2 F

BERE

BV EE

SRIT A :
BRETE

AR A7 A 50 2 193K

B RS 2R BIELEZIERBDEE
F 558 (BFT) MR | B TS
BB IER S 2R BB DS
F 85 (1B85T)

AREBEE AR A UL F I E R R EEBR] ~ EFT3R
BEARZENTE  BRRERELREEEH
HEEBENMBARIERBEATE -

standards and interpretation but is not yet in
a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

—ZETAFFHR Annual Report 2009 65



66

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(@) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

2. WUBERFEBR (W)

()

HREIRE
REMBRREBARAREMEHNER
AEET-A=1T—HIENHB®REK -

G HEBRA
ERpESPNCIEERNSEI SR 22 BN b )N
LERROAEER(BREEKRAEDN
BER) ARBRAHEBYEEKER-
RHEAREREES 5 —BER -
SERIRE A ITER A RAEBEER
SRNFERTE - B A REES
REBEAKE ZHE2EAAARK -
Ff 8 R BB AR 1L 2 BT LEAR
BARR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(@) Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

Subsidiaries (cont’d)

The purchase method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured
at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.
ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(a)

Consolidation (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Investments in subsidiaries are carried
on the balance sheet of the Company
at cost together with advances by
the Company which are neither
planned nor likely to be settled in the
foreseeable future, less provision for
impairment. Provision for impairment
in a subsidiary is made when the
recoverable amount of the subsidiary
is lower than the Company’s
respective cost of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests
The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests
as transactions with parties external
to the Group. Disposals to minority
interests result in gains and losses
for the Group and are recorded in
the consolidated income statement.
Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Segment reporting

It requires a ‘management approach’
under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes. Operating
segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-
maker has been identified as the board
of directors. The board of directors are
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of operating
segments. Operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segment has similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products, the nature of
production processes and the type or class

of customers.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.

2. REEERE

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or revaluation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equity
instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in

equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting 2. HREEERSIREE)
policies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (cont’d) (c) IEEBE (&)
(i) Group companies (i)  EEZ2F]
The results and financial position Nt B HEF G RRZFTAESEE
of all the Group entities (none REl(ATEERBREERRZCE
of which has the currency of a M) 2 EE RIS AT 5 R
hyperinflationary economy) that have BEREVNEE

a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as

follows:
- assets and liabilities for each - RBEEBBERMEBICZEER
balance sheet presented are BEREER ZWMERBE

translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for - BRaERzZBWARAIZETH
each income statement are fE =S (FRIEZ TFIIERIIE
translated at average exchange RPEABENEEZEZE
rates (unless this average is not B S FEUIE R TWA KA
a reasonable approximation SRR 5 AMERRE) 0 &

of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences - BIYCMBENREREAEZR
are recognised as a separate 2B EB DR

component of equity.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(i)

Group companies (cont’d)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to equity.
When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded
in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising
buildings, leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, equipment, furniture and
fixtures and motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition

of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of building, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Buildings 20-30 years

Machinery and 3-10 years
equipment

Leasehold 5 years or the
improvements lease period, if

shorter

Office furniture, 3-5 years
fixtures and fittings

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Office equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are recognised in
other gains, net in the income statement.

Land use rights

The upfront prepayments made for land
use rights are expensed in the income
statement on a straight line basis over the
period of the operating lease or when there
is impairment, it is recognised immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. It is tested for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses on separately recognised
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is carried at
fair value, representing open market value
determined annually by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset.

These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by
the Hong Kong Institution of Surveyors
(“HKIS”) Valuation Standards. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded
in the income statement as part of other
gains/(losses).

Land held under operating lease are
classified and accounted for as investment
property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating
lease is accounted for as if it were a finance
lease.

Investment property is measured initially at
its cost, including related transaction costs.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(h)

i)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (i.e. CGUs). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives paid
to lessees or received from the lessor) are
recognised as income or expenses in the
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the
asset.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

ISR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

1)

(k)

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as assets
held-for-sale when their carrying amount is
to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. Investment properties reclassified
as non-current assets held-for-sale are
stated at their fair values.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
catergory are classified as current asset.

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the date of trade
when the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(k)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (cont’d)

Gains or losses arising from change in the
fair value of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in other
gains, net in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in other income
in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. For unlisted
securites and when the market for a
financial asset is not active, the Group
establishes fair value by using appropriate
valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same and discounted cash
flow analysis.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement. Impairment testing
of trade and other receivables is described

in Note 2(m).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

()

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. For the
segment of trading of pipes and fittings,
cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (“FIFQ”) method. For the segment of
manufacturing and sale of seamless pipes,
cost is determined using weighted average
basis, the cost of work in progress and
finished goods comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

2.

WEEEREETER ()

U]

30
SRR A R T BB AR BB E %)
o REREHR DO ERAREE A
(T 50 HH 1) SARERE 22 i o
WG S ERAERINRTDEEET - 7
EQRERSOREQETENE - B
ALRIZRBEELHIDEOREER - 7] #
SUFER A% LB G R A
M R ERSE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting 2. FEREERSHREHE)
policies (cont’d)
(m) Trade and other receivables (m) EZRHEMERTIE

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement.
When trade and other receivables are
uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the
income statement.
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B ISR AR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n)

(0)

()

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after
the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n Employee benefits

(i

(i)

Employee leaves

Employee entitlements to annual
leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus
payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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B ISR AR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

()

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i)

Pension obligations

Following the adoption of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in December 2000, all
employees of the Group employed in
Hong Kong joined the MPF Scheme.
Under this scheme, employees
and the Group are required to
make contributions to the scheme
calculated at 5% of the individual
employee’s monthly basic salaries,
subject to a cap of HK$1,000. The
Group’s contributions to this scheme
are expensed when they are due.
The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.
The Group’s employees in the
People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are covered by various
government sponsored pension
plans. These government agencies
are responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees. The
relevant group companies pay
monthly contributions to these
pension plans based on certain
percentages of the salaries, subject to
a certain ceiling.

Under these plans, the Group has
no legal or constructive obligation
to make further payments once the
required contributions have been
paid. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(n Employee benefits (cont’d)

(iv)

Share-based payment

The Group operates an equity-
settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as
considerations for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value
of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-
market service and performance
vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.
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B ISR AR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(s)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Current and deferred income tax
(cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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B ISR AR Y EE

Basis of preparation and accounting
policies (cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services, net of value-
added tax, rebates, returns and discounts
and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related

receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Gross rental income from investment
properties is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the
respective leases.

(i) Interest income is recognised on
a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

(v) Dividend income is

when the right to receive payment is

recognised

established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting 2. FEREERSHREHE)
policies (cont’d)
(w) Financial guarantee contracts w) BBERESN

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts
that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are
initially recognised at their fair value, and
subsequently measured at the higher
of (i) the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation; and (ii)
the amount required to be settled by
the guarantor in respect of the financial
guarantee contracts at the balance sheet
date.
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B ISR AR Y EE

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk),
liquidity risk. The Group’s financial risk

credit and counterparty risk and

management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance by actively managing
debt level and cash flow in order to
maintain a strong financial position and
minimising refinancing and liquidity risks by
attaining healthy debt repayment capacity,
appropriate maturity profile and availability
of banking facilities. The Group adheres to
a policy of financial prudence and did not
use any derivative financial instruments or
structured financial products during the

year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk

U)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally
in Hong Kong and in mainland
China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from
various Currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD”) and
Euro. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that
is not the functional currency
of the entities of the Group. In
order to mitigate the foreign
currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its
foreign currency exposure and
requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if
necessary.
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B ISR AR Y EE

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

U)

Foreign exchange risk (cont’d)

As HKD is pegged against
USD, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate
fluctuation. As a result, the
exchange rate risk exposure
in respect of USD is not
significant. While for Euro,
the exchange rate fluctuates
relatively volatile. At 31st
December 2009, if Euro had
strengthened/weakened by
5% (2008: 5%) against HKD
with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss would
have been HK$174,000 (2008:
HK$164,000) higher/lower
respectively mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of Euro-
denominated financial assets
and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances and
deposits (the “Interest Bearing
Assets”) specified in Note 22
and 23, the Group has no other
significant Interest Bearing
Assets.

The Group’s interest rate risk
arises from borrowings (the
“Interest Bearing Liabilities”) as
set out in Note 27. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group analyses
its interest rate exposure
periodically by considering
refinancing, renewal of existing
positions and alternative
financing. The Group’s Interest
Bearing Liabilities issued at
variable rates include bank
borrowings of HK$243,822,000
(2008: HK$294,165,000)
and loan from a shareholder
of HK$49,360,000 (2008:
Nil) whereas Interest
Bearing Liabilities issued
at fixed rates include bank
borrowings of HK$34,302,000
(2008: Nil), loan from a
shareholder of HK$5,000,000
(2008:HK$29,492,000) and
amount due to a related
company of HK$22,869,000
(2008: Nil).
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B ISR AR Y EE

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(@  Market risk (cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

At 31st December 2009, with all
other variables held constant, if
the interest rate on HK dollar-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 10
basis points (2008: 10 basis
points), the corresponding
increase/decrease in net
finance costs (representing
interest income on the Interest
Bearing Assets less interest
expenses on Interest Bearing
Liabilities) would have resulted
in an increase/decrease in
the Group’s loss after tax by
HK$31,000 (2008: HK$97,000).
At 31st December 2009, if
the interest rate on Renminbi-
denominated borrowings at
variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had
increased/decreased by 25
basis points (2008: 25 basis
points), the corresponding
increase/decrease in net finance
costs would have resulted in an
increase/decrease in the Group’s
loss after tax by HK$207,000
(2008: HK$93,000).

The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(b)

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit risk mainly arises from bank
deposits and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts
of these balances substantially
represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit and counterparty
risk in relation to financial assets.

As at 31st December 2008 and
2009, all the bank deposits are
deposited
institutions without significant credit

in high quality financial

risk. The credit risk on bank deposits
is limited because over 70% of the
Group’s bank balances are placed
with subsidiaries of state-owned
banks and others are placed with
good
Management does not expect any

rating financial institutions.

loss from non-performance of these
banks.

In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
trade and other receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.
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B RS ERAR L

3. Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash
and availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management maintains
rolling forecast of the Group’s liquidity
reserves which comprises undrawn
banking facilities and cash and cash
equivalents, on the basis of expected
cashflows. The disposal of investment
properties in Hong Kong in January
and February 2010 has enhanced the
Group’s ability to serve its financial
obligations as they fall due and
reduced the level of bank borrowings.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

3. Financial risk management (cont’d) 3. MERKREHEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 MBEEEE(H)
(c)  Liquidity risk (cont’d) ) mEEZEEE)
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
—FURK —FERF MEELE AFLHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET

At 31st December R-ZETHE

2009 +=B=1+—H
Group 350
Trade and B 5 RHEAM

other payables [T TR 95,691 - - -
Amount due to EN—ZEERA

arelated company A 22,869 - - -
Amount due to a e —fiL

minority shareholder D EFRRFUA 133 - - -
Loan from REER

a shareholder 54,360 - - -
Borrowings EE 238,151 6,586 19,758 13,629
Interest paymentson {58 + R&E

borrowings, loan EXRERF—F
from a shareholder ~ BIiE R AR
andamountdueto  ZAIESfT

a related company  (Ff5E)

(note) 18,375 2,414 4,667 959
Company e N
Other payables HifeR 308 1,200 - - -
Amounts due to FERIP

subsidiaries UNGIEQET 105,176 - - -
Loan from a REE

shareholder 54,360 - - -
Interest payments on  AXEEE K

loan from a ZRBEA

shareholder (note) (FzE) 10,582 - - -
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B ISR AR Y EE

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.1

Note:

Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(©

3. MERREEGR)

3.1 HHEMEE (&)

Liquidity risk (cont’d) ©) EE AR ()
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
—F R —FEME WEZRE AENRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THAT
At31st December ~ RZZETN\F
2008 +ZA=+—AH
Group AEE
Trade and other B 5 RHEM
payables [T TR 83,223 = = =
Amounts due to JET R
related companies A FIHE 1,994 = = =
Loan from RERER
a shareholder - 29,492 = -
Borrowings BE 160,010 15,566 46,832 71,757
Interest payments ~ EER
on borrowings RERER
and loan from a RS
shareholder (note) (BE) 5,728 9,476 10,148 6,434
Company VNG
Other payables Hi e 308 2,053 = = =
Amounts due to FEIP
subsidiaries UNGIEOE] 145,872 = = =
Loan from a RERE
shareholder - 29,492 - -
Interest payments IR ERK
on loan from a ZHBEH
shareholder (note) (FizE) - 4,903 = =
BdaE:

The interest payments on borrowings, loan from a
shareholder and amount due to a related company are
calculated on the respective amounts held as at 31st
December 2008 and 2009 without taking into account
of any future change in market interest rate. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using applicable interest rates
at 31st December 2008 and 2009 respectively.
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Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total equity.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain a
solid capital base to support the operations
and development of its business in the long
term. Management considers a gearing
ratio as measured by total debt to total
equity of not more than 100% as solid and
reasonable. The table below analyses the
Group’s capital structure at 31st December
2008 and 2009 as follows:

Total debts wEE
Total equity farEm

Gearing ratio

3.

B ISR B EE

MERREEE(R)

32 EBEXRmRER

AEEEREAN BN ASREAEEER
B AR HE R A A F 28
HEATRENE  URERREFNER
RIBLAREE AR

REFIAEEARE > AEEAAER
BRERIRNEE - FARFREREER - %17
iR E B ER D ET -

HEMRAZE - ARENEEABLER
ERERERNESE - BERBLRIRE
B ERRIA MRS o

AEBIRBEEFRENESER - N
EHXHAKRENEHEERER - B
ERRRAEERNAERAECEER
BLREN100% A THBRENSIE -
TRAAEER _ZZENFR_TTNF
TZA=+—BERRBZON

2009 2008
“2EhEF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&x TR
361,454 323,816
448,143 404,624
81% 80%
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B ISR AR Y EE

Financial risk management (cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment
provision of trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, amount due to a
related company, loan from a shareholder
and amount due to a minority shareholder
are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are
discussed below.

(@) Estimates of fair value of investment

properties

The best evidence of fair value is current
prices in an active market for similar lease
and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgement,
the Group considers information from a
variety of sources including:

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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REFRGE -

PR it {h &t R PR

ApARAEERIEMRR(BREEAREMNF
e 2 B fAET) N FHE R IE R fEE R #
B - AT REEARRERAEHREERBEZ
FREEAFHEARRB Z M RRERZHH® °

(@ REVMEAAEBEMGE

AAENRERESBELUEOREMBE LD
RERMS ENREER - ERZZFE
HOBRT  AREeEREARERE
MEENEBEEABEE - EIEHHEE -
AEBZETRIRNER - 81



4.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(a)

Estimates of fair value of investment

properties (cont’d)

i) current prices in an active market
for properties of different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

ii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and

i) discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of future
cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other
contracts, and (where possible) from
external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.

If information on current or recent prices
of investment properties is not available,
the fair values of investment properties are
determined using discounted cash flow
valuation techniques. The Group uses
assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date.

4.

B ISR B EE

PRER S AT & R FIER (48)

()

REMERNREMRE (F)
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TRAEE - KR (X2 FRA
KIS AL A KR ) B E R BT
5 RBER (ZSEREIEE S
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SREMEE) &
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B ISR AR Y EE

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(a)

Estimates of fair value of investment
properties (cont’d)

The principal assumptions underlying
management’s estimation of fair value are
those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals;
void periods; maintenance requirements;
and appropriate discount rates. These
valuations are regularly compared to actual
market yield data, and actual transactions
by the Group and those reported by the
market.

The expected future market rentals are
determined on the basis of current market
rental for similar properties in the same
location and condition.

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”) was engaged to carry out
independent valuations of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31st
December 2009. These valuations were
prepared in accordance with the HKIS
Valuation Standards. The market value
of the property interest defined as “the
estimated amount for which a property
should exchange on the date of valuation
between a wiling buyer and a wiling
seller in an arm’s-length transaction after
proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.” Management has
reviewed the valuations and compared
them with their own assumptions, with
reference to comparable sales transaction
data where such information is available,
and has concluded that the valuations
of the Group’s investment properties are
reasonable.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values for the
Group’s property,
commencing from the date the assets are

plant and equipment

placed into productive use. The estimated
useful life reflects the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability
and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews
the marketability of inventory items at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable
for sales. The management estimates
the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at each
balance sheet date and makes provision for
obsolete items.

4,

B ISR B EE

PRER S AT & R FIER (48)

(b)

(c)

(d)

¥ BERREZRFEY

AEBZYE  BERRKBZARFHR
RAEBEEHEEEETE HEERALE
ZBRBAE - B ERFHERRES
RZBRAZ G IAKREFSED
% BB REBZERTAIERRREHE
Mzs

BE RAEMBYRE ZRERE

REBE 5 R EAb MR IR 2 B EREIK
SRUA T W [ 145 5 04 % B 3R FE I A B o
AR ERERIAZ RRERENFEE
TREHE BRBEEFPZEKESE
BEWGRFLE - HAKEZTFE PR A
BB - BISSEAIREES - BIZAFTHREESD
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FERERE
AEBEEEREEERRFNFEREZ
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B ISR AR Y EE

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations and allocation
of purchase price amongst identifiable
assets

The Group accounts for business
combinations in accordance with HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations”. It is required
to recognise separately, at the acquisition
date, the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that
satisfy the recognition criteria regardless
of whether they have been previously
recognised in the acquiree’s financial
statements. The valuation in respect of
the identifiable assets (including intangible
assets recognised upon an acquisition
during the vyear) and liabilities was
referenced to the inflow of future economic
benefits associated to the asset and the
outflow of future economic resources
required to settle the obligation based on
fair value assessment. Vigers was engaged
to carry out an independent valuation of
the land and buildings, property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, if any, of
the newly acquired subsidiary as disclosed
in Note 34. A considerable amount of
judgement and estimate is also required
in assessing the fair value of financial
guarantee provided to a third party by the
newly acquired subsidiary and the detail is
disclosed in Note 34ii).

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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4. Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (cont’d)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment according
to their recoverable amounts determined
by the CGUs based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates which are subject to
change of economic environment in future.

Employee benefits — share based
payments

The determination of the fair value of the
share options granted requires estimates
in determining the expected volatility of
the share price, the dividends expected
on the shares, the risk-free interest rate
for the life of the option and the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable as stated in Note 8. Where the
outcome of the number of options that are
exercisable is different, such difference will
impact the consolidated income statement
in the subsequent remaining vesting period
of the relevant share options.

Exercise of profit guarantee
Management assesses the likelihood of the
exercise of profit guarantee provided by
the former owners of the newly acquired
subsidiary as detailed in Note 34(i)
based on the profit forecast of the newly
acquired subsidiary. The preparation of
profit forecast requires the use of estimate
which is subject to change of economic
environment in future.

4. FREBEEHEETRFIE ()

(f)

(9)

(h)

BERE

AEBEBFRERCELEMUERER
ARtERMEE M AR E e AT
RUBEEEE S LREMAE - A
HAGE AR BN ARREEIRIRE A o

BEER - LRG HERAT

BERKBRENRAEAGREES
HURBIRE - AETERDIRNTOERE - B
RITEMRERR A R R FEFT A TITEAN
BREEHASZARIINKHES - WERAT
TENBREHMBEMEEZ  ZE=REER
PR IR R SR 5 B R K 4R A U
mRBATE -

RERF AT 6L

EIEEENFUE 2 KB R AR B R
Bl BMETEARRER 2 MNBERE A
BEMERFIBTIRAMT 3 34() o AR IR ETRAIZERE
A HIRN R BER BRSO
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Segment information

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board
of Directors that are used to make strategic
decisions. The Board of Directors assess the
performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company.

The Group has three reportable segments, which
are trading of pipes and fittings, manufacture
and sale of seamless pipes and investment in
properties for rental income. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers
different products and services. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in the basis of preparation
and accounting policies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments.

Trading of pipes and fittings include wholesale
and retail operations in Hong Kong, mainland
China and Macaul.

Seamless pipes segment is contributed by
a newly acquired subsidiary of the Group,
Jinyufeng, which manufactures and sells
seamless pipes in mainland China.

Investment in properties for rental income

includes properties held in Hong Kong and
mainland China.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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5.

Segment information (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

The segment information for the year ended 31st

December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Revenue

Operating (loss)/profit
before interest

Interest income

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Tax credit

(Loss)/profit for the year
Minority interest

(Loss}/profit attributable
to equity holders
of the Company

Operating (loss)/profit
before interest includes:

Depreciation and
amortisation

Provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment
of inventories

Capital expenditure (Note 14)

WA
&2 (BR),/ i
(R&rHIE)
MEHA
MEXH

Hai(58),/8H

i

FE(BR)/ &l

DERFER

A FIRHE
BHNER
(B#8)/ &f

&2 (BR)/ &M

(REtHIE) BE:

nERER
A REMEY
BERE

FEHERR

B (M 14)

B ISR B EE

5. SEEHGR)
BE_ZETZNEFR_TTN\F+_A=+—HIL
FEEZEBHEARDT ;

For the year ended 31st December 2009
BE_ZEAF+_AS+—-HILEE
Reportable segments
ATEENDE
Trading of Inter- Corporate
pipesand Seamless Investment segment and others Group
fittings pipes properties  revenue Total (note) total
BEREH BERE AR REM
B5 EBEAT #EWE  ERA BE (M) SHeE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TE#r T#T TET TET TR TER  TER
425,834 61,162 2,657  (35868) 453,785 - 453785
(12,918) 1,535 (1,717) - (13,100) (16,895)  (29,995)
57 60 2 - 119 - 119
(2,363) (1,082) (3,812) - (7,257) (5,847)  (13,104)
(15,224) 513 (5,527) - (20,238)  (22,742)  (42,980)
2,072 149 1,362 - 3,583 - 3,583
(13,152) 662 (4,165) - (16,655  (22,742)  (39,397)
- (265) - - (265) - (265)
(13,152) 397 (4,165) - (16,9200 (22,742)  (39,662)
1,992 1,563 745 - 4,300 137 4,437
8,793 - - - 8,793 11,291 20,084
13,290 - - - 13,290 - 13,290
613 3,421 3 - 4,037 61 4,098

—ZETAFFHR Annual Report 2009
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Segment information (cont’d)

Revenue

Operating profit/(loss)
before interest

Interest income

Interest expense

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) attributable to
the equity holders
of the Company

Operating profit/(loss)
before interest includes:

Depreciation and
amortisation

(Reversal)/provision for
impairment of trade and
other receivables

Provision for impairment
of inventories

Capital expenditure
(Note 14, 17)

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

WA

meEn/ (BR)
(Rat#lg)

MEHA

MEXH

BangH/ (Bi8)
BB (L) /B8

ALAIRE
HAAER
i/ (BR)

memr/ (BiR)

(RetHE) BEE:
e R

BARAMELR
RE(EE),/ B

FEHERE

BRER
(WizE14,17)

Notes to the Financial Statements

5. ZWEHR)
For the year ended 31st December 2008
HE-ST)\FtoA=t-ALEE
Reportable segments
ATEBNNE
Trading of Inter- Corporate
pipesand  Investment segment and others Group
fittings ~ properties revenue Total (note) total
BEREMN EENR DR A £E
g5 REWZ RIA et (Fitst) Lt
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT THL THT TAT THL THT
699,970 3,046 (1,260) 701,766 - 701,766
83,061 (32,492) - 50,569 (73,826) (23,257)
160 4 - 164 26 190
(8,872 (4,693) = (13,565) (236) (13,801)
74,349 (387,181) = 37,168 (74,036) (36,868)
(9,498) 3,700 = (6,798) 70 (6,728)
64,851 (33,481) - 31,370 (73,966) (42,596)
2,392 ar7 - 3,369 134 3,503
(128) - - (128) 24,004 23,876
5,251 - = 5,251 - 5,251
2,180 71,080 = 73,260 21 73,287




Notes to the Financial Statements

Segment information (cont’d)

Note:

The amounts mainly represent corporate administrative
expenses of HK$9,620,000 (2008: HK$14,622,000),
interest expenses of HK$5,847,000 (2008:
HK$236,000) and results of other businesses including
provision for impairment of other receivables of
HK$11,292,000 (2008: HK$24,004,000) and fair value
gains of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$5,728,000 (2008: losses of HK$29,798,000)
not categorised as operating segments.

The segment assets and liabilities as at
31st December 2009 and 2008 are as follows :

B ISR B EE

SBTEHGR)
G

ZEBEZENRRARITHER /9,620,000 (=%
T\ 1 14,622,000/ 7T) * F B 55,847,000
TL(ZZFZ)\F : 236,000 70) R I AT ALE DB
E 7B 15 H A EUGR 2 RE B & & 11,292,000/ 7T
—ZTT)\F : 24,004,000/87T) RIZA R BB BERT
BREVBI S B E 2 A A B ES 55,728,000 0 (ZFF N\
£ : 5518 29,798,000 8 7T ) B 2E4E o

REETNER-TT/\E+=-A=+—-RAz%
BAERABNT :

As at 31st December 2009
Reportable segment assets

R=EEAFT=A=1-R
AERNARLE

Reportable segment liabilities BTERNIBERE

Reportable segments
ATERNARE

Trading of Corporate
pipesand  Seamless Investment and others Group
fittings pipes properties Total (note) total

BEREH e
H5 BERE HREMR 1 (W) SE#E
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TRT T#T TR THT T#T TR
325,782 285,653 304,436 915,871 8917 924,788
149,630 145,391 98,897 393,918 82,727 476,645
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5. Segment information (cont’d) 5. 9EEEGE)
Reportable segments
ATERNAIE
Trading of Corporate
pipes and Investment and others Group
fittings properties Total (note) total
REREMH NEREAM
85 REMZ h% (M) SEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL TH ThET TEL
As at 31st December 2008 RZEEN\E+-A=1-H
Reportable segment assets BATERNIBEE 477,039 319,130 796,169 24,665 820,834
Reportable segment liabilties BTERNNIEEE 278,835 104,962 383,797 32,413 416,210
Note: The balances represent assets and liabilities MizE : ZESBARAFRRINALES LB H A

WEERBRE R=ZZTAF+=-A=+—8
ZEBREBREAREBBERSVIRNTIEE
EAZT(=ZF )\ 22493000/ 7T) * ]

of coporate and other businesses not
categorised as operating segments. As at 31st
December 2009, these balances principally

110

include financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of nil (2008: HK$22,493,000),
cash and cash equivalents of HK$7,556,000
(2008: HK$584,000), amount due to a related
company of HK$21,067,000 (2008: Nil) and loan
from a shareholder of HK$59,881,000 (2008:
HK$29,651,000).

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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Segment information (cont’d)

Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China R B KR
Others Hith

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding
financial assets and deferred tax assets) by
geographical location as at 31st December 2009
and 2008 are detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Mainland China SN
Others HoAh

B ISR B EE

SBTEHGR)

HESFEH
AEERIE D BHREINREF A

Revenue

B A

For the year ended

31st December
BEFE+_A=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
—®BAE | —TI)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
384,528 686,500
63,165 6,431
6,092 8,835
453,785 701,766

RZZBZNGFRZZFZNFTA=1T—H K
SRR SENIERBDEE (TREVBEE
MIEETIBEE)

2009 2008
“EBBAEF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx THETT
2,835 106,396
354,161 200,830
42 63

357,038 307,289
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B ISR AR Y EE

6. Other gains/(losses), net 6. Htha (5i8)B8E
2009 2008
—EEhE —EE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FABT
Financial assets at fair value BAnEBEERER

through profit or loss SRR TS & B

— fair value gains/(losses) - AR EEKE(EE) 5,728 (29,798
Fair value gains/(losses) on WEMERRELZ

investment properties Wz (E18)

(Note 17) (B&E17) 4,136 (31,582)
Net exchange (losses)/gains BE X (B518), W F 5 (194) 2,272
Net gain on disposal of property, HEWE « FE MR

plant and equipment 2 Wies FRE - 536

9,670 (58,572)
7. Expenses by nature 7. FAXHHE
Operating loss is stated after charging the KEEE TR TSEB BES
following:
2009 2008
ZEThE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FAT
Cost of inventories sold BEHEZFEKRAK 361,908 520,054
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 1,325 1,095
Depreciation of property, E 1=

plant and equipment HEE 4,329 3,503
Amortisation of Tt A

land use right e 108 -
Employee benefit expenses BTEAAxZ

(including directors’ (BRREEHE

emoluments (Note 8)) (FF5ES8)) 44,377 60,071
Operating lease on land T RAEF

and buildings ALY 15,799 15,718
Provision for impairment of B o REME

trade and other WHIERE

receivables, net ey 20,084 23,876
Provision for impairment FERE

of inventories, net B EFEE 13,290 5,251
Other expenses HF 32,230 36,883

493,450 666,451
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B ISR B EE

7. Expenses by nature (cont’d) 7. PAZEME(E)
2009 2008
ZZThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHIT
Representing: K&
Cost of sales SHEK A 381,077 534,856
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SHPK A 12,705 18,968
General and administrative — g AT
expenses &H 99,668 112,627
493,450 666,451
8. Employee benefit expenses 8. RARTAX(BRERE#NE)
(including directors’ emoluments)
2009 2008
ZEThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHIT
Wages and salaries TERFHS 42,141 58,536
Pension costs — RIRERNA - ERR
defined contribution plans HEETE 1,518 1,535
Share based payment (note) LARE 1R B ERE 2 A3 () 718 =
44,377 60,071
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Employee benefit expenses 8. EARTAXZ(BREEEME) (&)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
Note: MiaE -
Details of share options are as follows: BIREFBOT:
Number of share options
REENA
Exercise Price 1st January Granted Lapsed/ 31st December
fTER 2009 and Cancelled 2009
Grantor Date of grant HK$ —ZENE accepted  Exercised BN/ pl- - 2
#HA #HH A% BT —A—H EEHiER BT i3] +=A=+-H
The Company 3rd December 2009 0.071 - 592,000,000 - - 592,000,000
/NG “TTNF+T=A=H
The share options were granted on 3rd December BREENR-ZZTNF T -A=BKL - AARIMER
2009. The share options of the Company have option EHRA—SENF T _A=ZRE_T—hF+=A=
period from 3rd December 2009 to 2nd December H(BEEEMA) - (TEHRFFERMEE25F)H -
2019 (both days inclusive). Details for the exercisable
period is shown in Note 25.
The estimated fair value of share options granted is ERNBERENGT AR EERE ZHEAAERENG
based on the Binomial model. The significant inputs into H o MAZIERANEZ2HAT ¢
the models are as follows:
3rd December 2009
Date of grant BHAM —ZEThFE+_-_A=H
Exercise price 1B HK$0.071
Expected volatility TEHANR B IE 54%
Expected option life TE AR AR FEF HA 10 years
10 &
Annual risk free interest rate FEERRF = 2.16%
Dividend yield ZE® 3.58%
Fair value RAEE HK$0.021 ~ HK$0.031

The expected volatility measured at the standard
deviation is based on the historical data of the
weekly share price movement of the Company and
benchmarked against price volatility of shares of
companies comparable with the Company.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE
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B ISR B EE

8. Employee benefit expenses 8. EARTAXZ(BREEEME) (&)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=Me

The remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 31st December 2009 and 2008

EEERBE_TTNFR-_ZZNF
T-A=T—BLFENMSFHIOT

is set out below:

2009
- -3
Group’s
Salaries contributions Share
and other  to retirement based
Fees benefits scheme payments Total
FEEYH L 10)
FeR BibatE BEED
e EtiEsl Z i okt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Name of Director EEke TR T Ti&T TET FiET
Lai Guanglin (note () Lai Guanglin (B () 85 - - - 85
Lai Fulin (note (i) FEfRRA (JiHEE (i) - 320 3 75 398
Yu Ben Ansheng (notefiil) &% 4 (FizE (i) - 1,269 8 - 1,277
Cai Shangwu (note (j) 2w, (FHEE() 85 - - - 85
U Kean Seng (note (i) REER (FHEE() 85 - - 45 130
Zhao Yue (note (i) R (PEE () 85 - - 45 130
Sam Ming Choy (note (v)) ~ Sam Ming Choy (FizE (iv)) 84 406 4 75 569
Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson g bA{E (FifzE ()

(note () 153 - - 15 168
Lau Kwok Ting (note (i) 2IB35 (BitzE () 128 - - 15 143
Wu Xiuru (note (v)) R4 () 55 - - 15 70
Wing Man Yi (note (vi) ste (FE (i) 29 268 2 - 299
Lam Cheung Shing, MR (I3 (vi)

Richard (note (vi)) 29 718 2 - 749
Chan Wing Yuen, Bkl (Rt (vi)

Hubert (note (vi) 29 718 2 - 749
Zhu Yongjun (note (vi) RBE (FtsE M) 29 479 2 - 510
Lui Tin Nang (note (vi) mRag (FIEE (vi) 29 - - - 29
Ko Ming Tung, IR (FE V)

Edward (note (vi) 29 - - - 29
Ho Yiu Yue, Louis T (et (i)

(note (vi)) 29 - - - 29

963 4,178 23 285 5,449
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B ISR AR Y EE

8. Employee benefit expenses 8. EARTAXZ(BREEEME) (&)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d) (@ E=#M< (E)
2008
—TENF
Group’s

Salaries  contrioutions
and other  to retirement

Fees benefits scheme Total
AR
ek RN
(i Hitian AR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of Director ESiS TR TAT TR TEL
Wing Man Yi (note (vi) &30t (PFE () 200 1,800 12 2,012
Lam Cheung Shing, MR (FI3E (vi)

Richard (note (vi)) 200 2,161 12 2,373
Chan Wing Yuen, Bkl (Bt (vi)

Hubert (note (vi)) 200 2,202 12 2,414
Zhu Yongjun (note (vi) RBE (FtsE M) 200 1,224 12 1,436
Lui Tin Nang (note (vi) mRag (FIEE (vi) 200 - - 200
Ko Ming Tung, IR (FHE V)

Edward (note (vi) 200 - - 200
Ho Yiu Yue, Louis s (FI3E (vi)

(note (vi)) 200 - - 200
Hu Yishi (note (vii) AR R (P2 (vi) 100 = = 100
Hu Jinxing (note (vi) 1A 2 (PEE (vi) 100 = = 100
Zhang Yang (note (vii)) ot (P (vi)) 100 - - 100

1,700 7,387 48 9,135
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Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (cont’d)
Notes:

(i) Appointed on 23rd February 2009.

(ii) Appointed on 1st October 2009.

(iii) Appointed on 13th May 2009.

(ivy  Appointed as independent non-executive
director on 23rd February 2009 and re-
designated as executive director on 15th
September 2009.

(v) Appointed on 19th August 2009.

(v Resigned on 23rd February 2009.

(vi)  Retired on 6th June 2008.

(viii)  Resigned on 26th September 2008.

The emoluments of the directors fell within
the following bands:

Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 % —1,000,00078 7T

HK$1,000,001- 1,000,001 7T
HK$1,500,000 - 1,500,000 7T

HK$2,000,001 — 2,000,001 7T
HK$2,500,000 - 2,500,00078 70

Emoluments paid to independent
non-executive directors amounted to
HK$552,000 (2008: HK$600,000).
Emoluments paid to non-executive
directors amounted to HK$345,000 (2008:
HK$200,000).

B ISR B EE

8. RERBRFMAXZ(BREEME)HE)

(a)

EE=Me (&)
BiFE -

0] R-ZEZNF-_A-+=HEZT-
iy RZEZENFTA—BEEE-
iy M-TENFRA+=REZRT-

vy RZZETNF-RA=T=ZBHZERBIIF
HITES  IRN—ZZNFNAA+THEHR

ERATES -
v RIBBAFN\A+LBEERE-
V) RZZZENF-_A=+=HFHE-

(i) RZZTENGFNANHEME-

7

Vi) N=FBN\FNA=TREEIE-

FEMENFUTER -
2009 2008
—eEAE | —TE)\A
16 6
1 1
- 3
17 10

T BILIENTES 2 B2 3Z 552,000 7T
(ZZZTN\F : 600,000/87C) ° {FFIEATT
EE S E3450008T(ZETN\E
200,000/87T) °
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8. Employee benefit expenses 8. EARTAXZ(BREEME) (&)
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ENUBREHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments RERN AEEBRUZESHATBE—
were the highest in the Group for the year (ZZEENF: Z()EF ' HFELER L
include one (2008: three) director whose XEHNHDMRE - R-BEZAFAR - X
emolument is reflected in the analysis NFEAUN (ZFBEENE ML) AT 2B
presented above. The emoluments paid to ST :
the remaining four (2008: two) individuals in
2009 were as follows:
2009 2008
ZZThFE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Salaries and other short —  EEARF & M EAD
term employee benefits R BRI 6,134 3,097
Pension costs — defined ~ RIREKA - ERE
contribution plans KRGS 48 414
Compensation for BERL AR
loss of office - 360
Share based payment LARSAD A B RE Y S 70 50 -
6,232 3,871
The emoluments of the four (2008: two) WE(ZEZENF : MAB) Res AT 2H
individuals fell within the following bands: BT TS E
2009 2008
—SThE ZEEN\F
HK$1,000,001 - 1,000,001 /&7T —
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000% 7T 2 -
HK$1,500,001 — 1,500,001 & 7T —
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — 2,000,001 & 7T—
HK$2,500,000 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
4 2

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%(&£®EHERATE
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Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments)
(cont’d)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (cont’d)
During the year, no directors waived any
emoluments and no emoluments had
been paid by the Group to directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group. For the year ended 31st December
2009, no compensation had been paid to
former directors of the Company for loss of
office (2008: HK$1,104,000).

Finance costs, net

Bank interest income
Interest expense on loan

RITABHA
PR EFF B

%
=]
[

from a shareholder X

Interest expense on amount JER —REFER AR
due to a related party FEZ M

Interest expense on bank ARAFNTBEE
borrowings wholly ZIRITIEE 2 FE
repayable within five years S

Interest expense on bank
borrowings not wholly
repayable within five years

X

B ISR AR B EE

8. RERBRFMAXZ(BREEME)(H)

(b)

FugEEH AL (E)
FAVWEBEHETMAMNE - MAKEL
BERNEEINMESEAMBAS B AR
B2EE - 2 _TTNF+_A=1+—
HIEFE - WRARNE ST ERBEREA
B (=ZZZ)\F : 1,104,000/ 7T) °

9. MEBRASE

BEARTFATHEER
ZIRITEEZHE

2009 2008
—EEAE | —TI)\A
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT
(119) (190)
5,362 159
580 =
3,843 6,169
3,319 7,473
12,985 13,611

—ZETAFEFHR Annual Report 2009
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B ISR AR Y EE

10. Tax credit/(expense) 10. RI\ESR (ZTH)
2009 2008
ZEThE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
Current taxation: BNEATSIE :
Hong Kong profits tax EBEH (903) (9,149)
Overseas tax TFHNRIE (80) (414)
Over-provision in prior years AR E %12 427 52
Total current tax BIHATS B A2 %R (556) 9,511)
Deferred taxation (Note 28): IRAETEIE (Fi5E28)
Origination and reversal of TRER
temporary differences 2B N B 4,139 3,639
Impact of change in Hong Kong & FISFi i X & H)
profits tax rate -7 - 144
Total deferred tax IRIERIAAE R 4,139 3,783
Tax credit/(expense) A e, (ZH) 3,583 (5,728)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the year. The rates
applicable for income tax in mainland China
is 25% (2008: 25%) for the year ended 31st
December 2009.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

BB FISHAF NE T ERRBS M B K 16.5%
(ZTFN\F 16.5%) TR - BE_FTTNF
t=—A=+—A1 - FEXEAEHZRERB
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10. Tax credit/(expense) (cont’d)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as

B ISR B EE

10. RIMESR (ZH) (&)

AEBEABERAMBR A HERERAERE
MSHEMETE 2 Eimi B =T

follows:
2009 2008
ZEThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T
Loss before income tax HiRifEsia (42,980) (36,868)
Tax calculated at tax rate %16.5% (ZZZN\F:16.5%)
of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) MERFAE 2 A (7,092) (6,083)
Effect of different tax rates E At BIR R =
in other countries -7 (3,205) (4,1895)
Remeasurement of BT EIRERIE
deferred tax — change in —BBEH
Hong Kong profits tax rate TR B E) - (144)
Reversal upon assets classified E{EHEEE
as held-for-sale EOJEIEE (1,545) =
Unrecognised tax losses RIERTIRE R 7,019 7,014
Tax effect of income not R R Z WA
subject to taxation ZRiIE (2,179) (114)
Tax effect of expenses not AR 2 S H
deductible for taxation Z IR
purposes 3,846 9,292
Over-provision in prior years AR E %42 (427) (52)
Tax (credit)/expense BIE(ER), X H (3,583) 5,728

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the
weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.0%
(2008: 27.9%)

There is no tax impact relating to components of
other comprehensive income for the year ended
31st December 2008 and 2009.

HE-_ZTTNF+_A=1+—HILFE - NEF
B 7 E AR R A24.0%( ZEZ)\E  27.9%) °

NH

EENFR-_BZENFT-A=+—HL
5

CWEBAREMEEWENIRR ARIAY

o

R
WHM
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B RS ERAR L

11. Loss attributable to equity holders 11. BRIEIHEAREGLEGE
The loss attributable to equity holders of the RARNRMBEHREANRE 2 KA BIREREE A
Company is dealt with in the financial statements JE 15 &5 18 /5 #923,218,000/8 7L ( — T T \ F :
of the Company to the extent of approximately 36,533,000/& 7T ° )

HK$23,218,000 (2008: HK$36,533,000).

12. Loss per share 12. BiREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per TRINTEFEEGRERREEEETIREFE RN
share is based on the loss attributable to equity FEHA AEIREE R E BT BR Z LA
holders and weighted average number of shares E(FERTAAE):

with adjustments where applicable as follows:

2009 2008
ZEThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHIT
Loss attributable to equity STESRERES
holders for the purpose of 2 PR
basic loss per share 1hEsE 39,662 42,596
Thousand Thousand
Number of shares 2770 A= | B T
Weighted average number of AESREREER 2
ordinary shares for the T 2 N
purpose of basic loss AR
per share 12,644,481 12,532,700
Share options issued in 2009 do not have any N_ZEZNFEITHNBRELGHEBRERER

b
qilt | |
R
I

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.
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B ISR AR B EE

13. Dividend 13. KR
2009 2008
ZEThE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAT
Final, proposed, Nil BRERE_ZTNERARKRE - &
(2008: Nil) (ZEZNF : 1) - =
Interim, paid, Nil “ETNFIRBEPHRE &
(2008: HK0.02 cents per share) (ZZZ)\F : &F20.02781l) - 2,507
- 2,507
At a meeting held on 20th April 2010, the board REZE—ZSFHA-THBITNESS S
of directors does not recommend a final dividend EEETERREEE_STNF+_A=F—
for the year ended 31st December 2009. HIEFEREARE o
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Group

Cost
At 1t January 2009
Exchange differences
Addtions
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34)

At 31st December 2009

Accumulated depreciation
At 1st January 2009
Exchange differences

Charge for the year

At 31st December 2009

Net book value
At 31st December 2009

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

14. Property, plant and equipment

i
KBRNE--F
E128

3

NB-ZHRAA (i)

R_EENET-A=1-H

R

=
Ei28
AERFE

RZZZNETZA=1-H

RESE
RZFENEF+-A=1-A

14. 9% - BE KM

A EME
Office
furniture,
Machineryand  Leasehold fixtures Office ~ Computer Motor

Buildings  equipmentimprovements  and fittings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total

BOE

BE  HEME GRRE
k2 R 4 Rl XEEE  EREG RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#n T T T TEn T T
- 6,958 9,493 1,086 257 741 6,551 31,816
13 10 1 - - - 6 30
1,646 1,930 2 63 19 12 405 4,08
74,164 30,821 - 21 36 17 1,482 106,897
75,823 39,725 9,517 1,360 312 7,660 8,444 142,841
- 3,741 7,199 628 165 5,746 2,546 20,025
- 1 - - - - 1 2
702 1,143 650 119 3% 607 1,073 4,329
702 4,885 7,849 41 200 6,353 3,620 24,356
75,121 34,840 1,668 613 112 1,307 4,824 118,485




Group (cont’d)

Cost

At 1st January 2008
Exchange differences
Adations
Disposals

At 31st December 2008

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st January 2008
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31st December 2008

Net book value
At 31st December 2008

13
RZZNE-A-H
EiZE
A&
HE

RZZZN\ETZA=1-H

ARiHE
R-ZZNE-A-H
EXZR
AEEE
hE

RZZTN\ETZA=1-H

BESE
R-EE\E+-A=1-H

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

B ISR AR AL

14. YR - BEERE (&)

AEE ()

Office

fumiture,

Machinery and Leasehold fixtures Office Computer Motor

equipment  improvements  and fittings equipment equipment vehicles Total

N

he HEME  fh KB
RikfE B Rikf &R Sk & ait
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr ThTL Thr ThE Thr ThE THr
6,220 8,511 1,007 239 7,134 8,292 31,403
178 43 19 12 - 469 il
560 939 60 6 337 305 2,207
- - - - - (25515) (2515)
6,958 9493 1,086 257 TAT1 6,551 31816
3253 6,296 528 19 5,161 3,601 19,003
6 1 - 5 - 9 21
482 902 105 4 585 1,388 3,503
- - - = - (2502 (2,502
3,74 7,199 628 165 5,746 2,546 20,025
3217 2,204 458 R 1,725 4,006 11,791

At 31st December 2009, buildings with carrying
values of approximately HK$73,084,000 (2008:
Nil) have been pledged for borrowings (Note 27).

R-ZZEENE+_A=+—0 " REBELHAE
73,084,000 7T (ZZZT)\F : &) 22FEHIE
TRE (MisE27) M T IAK -
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15. Land use rights 15. TifEAE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent AREBR T A ERETRN K EHEERIE
prepaid operating lease payment and their net FHEERESTIOT

book values are analysed as follows:

2009 2008
ZEThE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FiBT
In mainland China, held on: RARBIAREE - ATRZER#FE -
Leases of between NF10E504F
10 to 50 years HAEE 30,535 -
2009 2008
k- 15| §- 3 —EE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FBT
At 1st January n—H—H - -
Acquisition of a Wi —RIB AR
subsidiary (Note 34) (F5E34) 30,638 =
Exchange differences PEH =58 5 =
Amortisation #E (108) -
At 31st December W+=—H=+—8 30,535 -
At 31st December 2009, land use rights with RZZEZNF+ZA=1+—H REEBEHA
carrying values of approximately HK$28,837,000 28,837,000 8T (=TT /)\F : ) 2 T Hb{F B
(2008: Nil) have been pledged for borrowings ERERITHE (FFE27) M T A -
(Note 27).
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B ISR AR AL

16. Goodwill 16. W&
Goodwill is allocated to the segment of seamless PEE NP R RREELENE DE - ZEE K
pipes in mainland China engaged by Jinyufeng, a BEWRE  —FBEZHWBAR @ #ERWE
newly acquired subsidiary, as disclosed in Note 34 EEE T ENECIERSBURETHIE
34. The Directors have evaluated the recoverable A ©

amount of goodwill and concluded that no
impairment is required.

2009 2008

ZZThE —ETN\F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

THET FBT

At 1st January n—H—H - -

Acquisition of a WEE—KMIE A A

subsidiary (Note 34) (PH7E34) 22,266 -

Exchange differences MEH =58 521 =

At 31st December R+—A=+—H 22,787 =

17. Investment properties 17. HEYE

2009 2008

ZEThE ZETN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH#T FBT

At 1st January n—A—H 295,498 243,363

Exchange differences MEH =8 277 12,637

Additions NE - 71,080

Fair value gains /(losses) (Note 6) A7 Bz (E1E) (KizE6) 4,136 (31,582)
Classified as assets DEEFELHEEE

held-for-sale (Note 24) Bier24) (114,680) -

At 31st December W+=—HA=+—8H 185,231 295,498
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17. Investment properties (cont’d)

The following amounts have been recognised in
the consolidated income statement:

Rental income e A

For the year ended 31st December 2009, rental
income was derived from properties in Hong
Kong which have been classified as assets held-
for-sale.

The investment properties in mainland China
were revalued at 31st December 2009 by Vigers,
an independent professional valuer. Valuations
were based on current prices in an active market
for properties.

At 31st December 2009, investment properties
with carrying values of HK$185,231,000 (2008:
HK$295,498,000) have been pledged for
borrowings (Note 27).

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

17. REMEGR)

AR 4R & Wt RER AR -

2009 2008
—EThEF —EE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
1,767 1,796

HE_TTNF+_A=+—HLEFE HaK
ARBBUREENYE  EHBRERELHEER
& o

BYERGEMBEBRHER_ZTNAFT A
=+ BEURTEAEZIREYEETER -
HEADEREENS 2 ERMER/EE -

R-EBEZAFE+_A=+—H REE:AE
185,231,000/ 70 (== )\ 4 : 295,498,000
TC) ZIREMEE EIEITRE (BIFE27) i1 7 LA
o



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

17. Investment properties (cont’d) 17. REMEE)
The Group’s interests in investment properties at REBENREYMEZ s (RERESTE) piTan
their carrying values are analysed as follows: BN
2009 2008
—ZThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
In Hong Kong, held on: RER » LWTFHFRFE :
Leases of between NF10E50FMHEE
10 to 50 years - 102,500
In mainland China, held on: AR BIREE - LATRFIAREE ¢
Leases of over 50 years HBAS0FMEE 185,231 192,998
185,231 295,498
The future aggregate minimum lease receivables REERBEDAIHELSEHNMIEEYEDS A
under non-cancellable operating lease in respect RIELEEERKR 2 A RRERERBLEN
of its investment properties classified as assets T @
held-for-sale are as follows:
2009 2008
—ZThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TH#T FAT
Not later than one year —FHAT 83 1,480
Later than one year and —F A BT
not later than five years BRF - 540
83 2,020
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18.

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted investments, at cost

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

B R

LLess: Provision for impairment

As at 31st December 2009 and 2008, the
amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The carrying
values of amounts due from subsidiaries
approximate their fair values.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

FEEMHRE (RAA)

FEM P B X B 3RIR

18. RIFELAFIRE

FE Ui B /8 X T RRIR

R-FEAFR-FENF+A
WA R AR - 28

T E

Company
r 3/
2009 2008
ZEEAE T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
96,901 96,901
Company
ERT
2009 2008
ZEBAF T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
282,464 231,481
(25,740) (12,048)
256,724 219,433
=1t—H"E
RN B SR

JEW B A B 2 RIBIABTTAHE - REESEKRS

NAERE °



18.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Amounts due to subsidiaries

As at 31st December 2009 and 2008, the
amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying values of amounts due to
subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Details of principal subsidiaries, which in the
Directors’ opinion, materially affect the results
and/or net assets of the Group as at 31st
December 2009 are set out in Note 38.

18. MIEL

B ISR AR AL

Y EIRE ()

E{TF{TE’D\_J E
RZEZNEFR_TTN\F+_A=+—H " [E
HWEAEME%?@%EW R EHEARE ‘J’Hﬂ%‘

FENHIB A RRIBZ BREEERE A A ERE ©

EERRBAEEZEER IR _TTNF
TZA=+T—BZFEEBREARXEZTEW
B AR FHIBHMNMIEESS
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19. Financial instruments by category

Group

Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

31st December 2009
Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits (Note 22)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)

Total

31st December 2008
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Pledged bank deposit (Note 22)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)

Total

TABEBER
FITBE
RZEENF+ZA=1—R
B 5 R E IR
BRI (HiEE22)
Be kR eZEY (MF23)

HE

RZBENF+=ZA=1+—H
B 5 R E R
RARBERBRIE

mEBAE
ERBRITER (HEE22)
Re kRSB (fi7£23)

HE

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE
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19. HERNSHEMIA

AREE

Financial assets

at fair value

Loans and through profit

receivables or loss
ERR RBROABEEEER Total
ElE SRIRCHERE g
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FTET
158,893 - 158,893
38,576 - 38,576
55,784 - 55,784
253,253 - 253,253
187,840 - 187,840
- 22,493 22,493
20,000 - 20,000
19,476 - 19,476
227,316 22,493 249,809
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19. Financial instruments by category 19. BEREISMHEMT A (E)
(cont’d)
Group (cont’d) REE (E)

Other financial liabilities

Httft &R
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHIT
Liabilities as per consolidated mEEEAER
balance sheet FIRBtE
Trade and other B 5 R H AR FIE
payables (Note 29) (fizE29) 95,691 83,223
Loan from a shareholder ARERER
(Note 33) (FF5E33) 59,881 29,651
Amount due to a related e —REFE R EIFIE
company (Note 33) (BH7E33) 23,449 1,094
Amount due to a minority JEAS — L DB
shareholder SRIE 133 =
Borrowings (Note 27) BE (MaE27) 278,124 294,165
Total ik 457,278 409,033
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19. Financial instruments by category 19. BEREISMHEMT A (E)
(cont’d)
Company PN

Financial assets

at fair value
Loans and through profit
receivables or loss
BERR BROAREEBER Total
Bl® RIRZHERE 1]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
Assets as per balance sheet ¥ F‘Ef = RFTRBE
31st December 2009 RZBENFT=A=1T—H
Deposits and other receivables } E REMETR 236 - 236
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUF B AR FIE
(Note 18) (M 18) 256,724 - 256,724
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) & KR & SEY (i 23) 877 - 877
Total kS 257,837 - 257,837
31st December 2008 RZBENF+-A=1—H
Deposits and other receivables e REMENE 158 - 158
Financial assets at fair value ?E/&ftfﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
through profit or loss SIERE TS B E - 22,493 22,493
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUF B A R FIE
(Note 18) (M 18) 219,433 - 219,433
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) Re LA SEY (H7E23) 474 - 474
Total @z 220,065 22,493 242,558
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19. Financial instruments by category 19. BEREISMHEMT A (E)
(cont’d)
Company (cont’d) AATE (&)

Other financial liabilities

Htht AR
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FAT
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEBEXRFINAE
Other payables (Note 29) HAb eI (FF5E29) 1,200 2,053
Amounts due to AN NGIEN
subsidiaries (Note 18) (fizE18) 105,176 145,872
Loan from a shareholder RERE R
(Note 33) (FF5E33) 59,881 29,651
Total k] 166,257 177,576
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20. Inventories 20. #®
2009 2008
ZEThE ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHIT
Raw materials JRIHEL 17,956 -
Work in progress P 6,010 -
Consumables SFEm 1,603 =
Finished goods 723 154,879 260,337
180,448 260,337
At 31st December 2009, the provision for RZZEZNFTA=+—8 ' GEREREH
impairment of inventories amounted to #£ 30,092,000 7T (ZZFZ )\ 4 : 16,802,000 %8
HK$30,092,000 (2008: HK$16,802,000). JT) °
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses BTRAEZHWI ABEKRIE T 2 FEKANE
and included in cost of sales amounted to 361,908,000/ 7t (== F )\ & : 520,054,000 %
HK$361,908,000 (2008: HK$520,054,000). JC) °
At 31st December 2009, inventories held RZZBZENF+ZA=+—8 RTEKBAA
by a PRC subsidiary with carrying values of A RMEE4/4538,926,0008 7L (ZFF/)\F :
approximately HK$38,926,000 (2008: Nil) have ) 2 FEERRTRE (Mi5E27) i T LA -

been pledged for borrowings (Note 27).
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21. Trade and other receivables 21. ¥H5HRHEMEBRKHRIE
Group Company
&M b /NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZESAE | —ZT)\F | ZBBAE | —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHET TAT
Trade receivables BHER 135,773 145,844 - =
Less: provision for impairment W ORERE (2,612) (967) - -
Trade receivables — net U E TR — 558 133,161 144,877 - =
Prepayments R 7,608 2,506 167 50
Other receivables and H b zIA
assets, net REEFR 23,206 40,306 236 158
Rental deposits and other assets &k R EMEE 2,526 2,657 - -
166,501 190,346 403 208
Less: non-current portion B FERENED (3,061) 972) - -
163,440 189,374 403 208
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other Z oA - EtERGRIE - HEERELY
receivables, other assets and rental deposits e ZEmeBEREFEAABEBS °

approximate their fair values.
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B RS ERAR AL

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BIT
RVMB AR
usD ET

MRFTHE

Macau Pataca

During the year, the Group generally granted
credit term of 90-120 days under the segment
of trading of pipes and fittings and 60-90 days
under the segment of seamless pipes. The
ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the
due date is as follows:

Within credit period EEHR

1 to 30 days 1RE30K
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K
61 to 90 days 61 XZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days B 120K

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE

21. BHRAMBURIE ()

AREE S REMERHAZ EESHA TR
WHHE

2009 2008
“EBBAEF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx THETT
96,220 164,571
61,722 25,310
8,354 =

205 465
166,501 190,346

FA - ARE-RETREREHFESDEIOE
120K M ELEHHE D IR60-00 R ZEEH - EHE
Wiz B BB Z BREe D ATAR T

2009 2008
—EThEF —ETN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT
90,986 101,131
25,447 20,209
4,734 7,075
2,290 6,127
487 2,205
11,829 9,097
135,773 145,844




21.
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Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Trade receivables that are current or past
due less than four months are not considered
impaired. As of 31st December 20009,
trade receivables of HK$42,175,000 (2008:
HK$43,746,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

1 to 30 days 1 RXE30K
31 to 60 days 31 XRE60X
61 to 90 days 61 KXZE 90K
91 to 120 days 91 RE120K
Over 120 days BiE 120K

As at 31st December 2009, trade receivables
of HK$2,612,000 (2008: HK$967,000) were
impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers,
which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations. These receivables are past due more
than 120 days.

21,

B ISR AR AL

BHR AR RN ()

BEisk @ B E A LA T 2 B B EMHBET 2 =
BIEREBE - RZZEFTNLEFE+A=1+—8"
Z 5 R HIEA2,175,0008 L ( BT )\ F :
43,746,000 7T ) B 8 BB RIERE ° 2558
H—#tWEa g SRR BUREAR - 25
B ZEWGRIB 2 R DITIAT

2009 2008
—ETNF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#grn TR
25,447 20,209
4,734 7,075
2,290 6,127

487 2,205

9,217 8,130
42,175 43,746

R_ZEEAFE+_A=+—8 BEFZEKZE
2,612,000 7C (ZZFZ/\4F : 967,000 7C) E1F
ERE o BRI 2 R E R EIEE ZERE T
AN ERNE X P AR o 2SR IES B
B120K °
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21.

B RS ERAR AL

Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

At 1st January mn—H—H

Provision for impairment VERIEEE

Receivables written off during F A ELBGRIAAREE
the year as uncollectible Uiz ] 7 8

Unused amounts reversed RENFAREEIZRIE

At 31st December R+ZHA=+—H

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the
provision account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

As at 31st December 2009, other receivables
of HK$42,377,000 (2008: HK$24,004,000)
were impaired and provided for. The amount
of additional charge was HK$18,289,000 for
the year ended 31st December 2009 (2008:
HK$24,004,000) and has been included in general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. The individually impaired other
receivables mainly related to counterparties, which
are in unexpected difficult economic situations.

The other classes within trade and other
receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

China Pipe Group Limited HEIE%&£®EHERATE
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21. BHRAMBURIE ()

B RB 2 RERBEEIT

2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

967 2,432

2,369 314

(226) (1,337)

(498) (442)

2,612 967

S ERUE R IR E MR R 2 RBT T AR S
WK ANz — MR BRITHS ) o IR ER HIBR R
SR —RRAR TS WD ERINR S FHEH o

R-_ZBEZNF+_A=+—H8 HitbElzE
42,377,000 70 (ZZFZ/\F : 24,004,000787T)
Ef%ﬂa@ﬁéﬁ HE-ZTETZAF+=ZA=+—
" BEANEBESREA 18,289,000 T (ZFEEN
E : 24,004,000 70) © WE G AérE W mRA
Z—MRITEFEZIET o [ERRE < Bt FE UGk
BEEPRRZEFHBAREBRNLCERSE -

85 R EAM BT IRRE ML EEA 2 RIE

RS B2 RAEERR A L& 58 RUGK
ZRffE $$lﬂz?ﬂi%ﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁuuf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ °

N
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22. Pledged bank deposit 22, SEHBRITER
As at 31st December 2009, bank deposit RZZEZNF+_A=+—H ° 30,000,000 %7T
of HK$30,000,000 (2008: HK$20,000,000) ZZTT\F : 20,000,000 5T ) B TTEHE KA
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bank 8,576,000 B T (ZEZFNF : ) UARKEE
deposit of approximately HK$8,576,000 (2008: ZBITFEHRE TUAER - EAREBRRITEER
Nil) denominated in Renminbi was pledged as B2 EES (M5E27) °
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
27).
The effective interest rate on pledged bank BHEMRITFEARZERNRAEE024%(—Z2E
deposit was 0.24% (2008: 0.4%) per annum and NE :04%)  ZEERZBBHENF4RE102
these deposits are matured within 4 to 102 days RK(ZEZENF:62K) °

(2008: 62 days).

23. Cash and cash equivalents 23. BHEeRB&FED
Group Company
*EE FAF
2009 2008 2009 2008

“BEAE | —TT/N\F | ZBBAEFE | —TT)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

F#T T THT FAT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 55,784 19,476 877 474
Maximum exposure to credit risk BASHHSEERE 55,563 18,816 876 474
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23. Cash and cash equivalents (cont’d) 23. BeRBIEEREM(E)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts ML REREAMNS ' BE  REeEENETE
include the following for the purpose of the cash Y BEFEATRIR
flow statement:
Group Company
*5E FAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEThE | —ZTEN\F | ZBBAFE| —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHIT TER FAT
Cash and cash equivalents Re KB EEY 55,784 19,476 877 474
Bank overdrafts (Note 27) RITE X (HI5E27) - (2,160) - =
55,784 17,316 877 474

AEBRARAZAE MREFE RASEIR

The carrying amounts of the Group and the

Company’s cash and cash equivalents are AN EH®EHE -
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
F5H F27
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBNFE | —TE)\F | ZEBAE| —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THT TR THT FAT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 40,526 13,448 877 474
RMB AR 13,128 3,265 - -
usD = 518 234 - -
Australian dollars BT 394 776 - -
Euro BT 1 30 - -
Other currencies H g 1,217 1,723 - =
55,784 19,476 877 474

RZEFAARETEZ BRI BRBINEREZE
BEoBEHPE  BRXPEBNEREIMNEE HIHE
HEARER

The conversion of these Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of these funds out of the mainland
China is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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24. Assets held-for-sale 24.

25.

Investment properties held in Hong Kong have
been presented as assets held-for-sale as
disposal actions had been initiated prior to year
end. The disposals were completed in January
and February 2010.

At 31st December 2009, assets held-for-
sale with carrying values of approximately
HK$114,680,000 located in Hong Kong have
been pledged for banking facilities (Note 27).

Share capital 25.

At 1st January and 31st RZZEZENF—A—AK
December 2008 +=A=+—8

Issue of new shares for Wi —KMIE AR
acquisition of a subsidiary BITHI
(note) (P E)

At 31st December 2009 R-ZEZENF+_A=+—

The authorised share capital of the Company is
HK$500,000,000, comprising 250,000 million
shares (2008: 250,000 million shares) with a par
value of HK$0.002 per share (2008: HK$0.002
per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Note: On 11th November 2009, the Company issued
800,000,000 new shares for acquisition of
Jinyufeng. The fair value of shares issued is
based on the closing price of HK$0.061 per
share at the date of acquisition. Details of the
acquisition are set out in Note 34.

B ISR AL

FEHERE

REEREIRENECFRFHEEERE
REETHERFEAMRR - ZFHER_T—
TE-ARZRAIP5EK -

R-ZZBEZAE+-_A=1+—H  REBHNEHIEDR
%é?&é%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ 114,680,000/ T2
EERITEE (M3 27) M T LA o

2. 3
Number of shares
3171 4=
thousands HK$’000
T F#ExT
12,532,700 25,065
800,000 1,600
H 13,332,700 26,665

RARZEERAE 500,000,000/87C © BERK
E{E0.002E T (ZZFF/\F : GREE 0.002
7 7T ) $£250,000,000,0008%( = & = J\ £ :
250,000,000,000 f%) 85X - FTEEZETRMHEE
BR -

T R—_FTAFT—A+—H KRB HET
800,000,000Hx%ﬁﬂxf’ﬁ?%”ﬂﬁi%ﬁ o BITHRAD
Z o EREER ZWTHE, BER0.06187T °
W EHIE TSN EE 34 ©
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25. Share capital (cont’d)

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme (“Scheme”) under which the directors
of the Company are authorised at their absolute
discretion, to invite any eligible participants
as defined in the Scheme, to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
subscription price will be determined by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (a) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
on which the relevant options are deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme (“the Commencement
Date”), which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities (“Trading Day”); (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
for the five Trading Days immediately preceding
the Commencement Date; and (c) the nominal
value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.
The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The Scheme became effective for a
period of ten years commencing 24th June 2004.

On 3rd December 2009, 592,000,000 share
options were offered and accepted by Directors
and employees, with an exercise price of
HK$0.071 and an option period of 10 years
commencing from 3rd December 2009 and
expiring on 2nd December 2019 (both days
inclusive), to be exercised in the following
manner.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

25.

B (#8)

BT &
ARRRERM—IRBRERT S ([RBAEsE))
Bt - REARFES2ENBERIMNEER
28 (Ex ABRERTE) ZRA BB A AR
M BEEE ABERHEFTSETE @ ETSE
R (a) BAn TR 76 BRRE AR 15 A5 A i PR B A R 21 16k
FEEREMNE R ((FRBBEH]) (AREBRAE
LRFEEEBCAMIRZE))) EBRME
BRERMBRZWHE : (o) RN EEFMK A H
AEEN AR S AEMI AT RRERARTF
BWHE : R BHEE=Eh &% - EH
Rz S BIRER - ARARZIM10BTZR
B - REBEBBAET SR O 2 BREY M2 RiD&
2HE  THEHEARMEREIERAARD
BITRAZ10% - B 8l —FTMEFRA
— OB EFTFRABR -

R-BZAE+-_A=0 AEBAEERES
LA B R 49592,000,000 DEERAE @ % FEE
Bt 2 1T1E(E 2 0.071 BT R BB E Z 1TEHIIR
AtTE HAZZEENF+_A=ZBAHRKRE_Z
—NF+ZAZBEBR(EEEMX) ' & 3H
A FATME -
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25. Share capital (cont’d)

Maximum percentage of the options exercisable
AfTECREEREASL

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee
REFAR AR H 2 BREREZ 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee
AR AR 2 BIRERE L 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee

AUERER AR i 2 BB AR Z 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee
AEFAR AR H 2 BREREZ 20%

20% of the total number of options granted to any grantee
ERAER AR 2 BIRERE 2 20%

Vesting of options granted to certain employees
are subject to achievement of profit target.

25.

B ISR B EE

B (#8)

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the options
fHEHRRRES 2 i KR

Upon the expiry of 6 months from 3rd December, 2009 and
up to 2nd December, 2019
M-FEAFT-AZAEHAEARRE E-F-NE
+=AZHIt

Upon the expiry of 18 months from 3rd December, 2009 and
up to 2nd December, 2019
BZENGET-A=ZARFTA\EAERE E2=T—N
F+ZRAZALL

Upon the expiry of 30 months from 3rd December, 2009 and
up to 2nd December, 2019

BTN T A=ARFA=TEAERE  Z-T—N
E+ZAZRALE

Upon the expiry of 42 months from 3rd December, 2009 and
up to 2nd December, 2019

“ERAETAZABHNTZAAERE =%
“NE+ZAZALE

Upon the expiry of 54 months from 3rd December, 2009 and
up to 2nd December, 2019
H-ZTAFT_A=ZHEFREtHEARERE Z=F
—NE+ZAZAL

RYETRE ZBEREAEI SN B EIAREB
THEES -
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25. Share capital (cont’d) 25. B&%E(#8)

Movements in the number of share options

FA - WMATTERBRERE 222w

outstanding during the year are as follows:

2009
—ETNEF
Average exercise price
in HK$ per share Number of
SBRERZ options
FEHTER(BT) AEBR4E S H
At 1st January n—H—H -
Granted B 0.071 592,000,000
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 592,000,000
26. Reserves 26. fEf@
Group REE
Capital  Merger Share based
Share  reserve  reserve Exchange  payment  Retained
premium  (note (i)  (note(i))  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
WRiHE
RRE EERE AHEE ERRE EROAR  GEEH 1]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TH#T T#T T TR T#T T#T T
At 1st January 2008 RZEEN\E-A-R 79418 34,115 8,700 4199 - 1112 42254
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (259 (425%)
Qurrency translation differences REHEEE - - - 12144 - - 12144
Dividend e - - - - - (1253 (12533
At 31st December 2008 RZTEN\ETZA=1-H 79418 34,115 3,700 16,343 - 245983 379,559
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (9662 (30,662
Currency translation differences BihEEe - - - 570 - - 570
Isste of new shares for acquisition WEERBARETR
of a subsidlary (Note 34) (Fizkas) 47,200 - - - - - 41200
Share based payment MR AR - - - - 8 - 8
At 31st December 2009 R-EZHE+-A=1-H 126,618 34,115 3,700 16,913 718 206321 388,385
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26. Reserves (cont’d) 26. fEiE ()
Company b 3/
Retained
Contributed ~ Share based earnings/
Share surplus payment (Accumulated
premium (note (iii)) reserve deficit) Total
BARR NkiRE RERH/
BivEE (M) ERSAR  (RHER) #n

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-7 -7 TET -7 -7

At 1t January 2008 RZZEN\E-A—H 79418 86,759 - 20,172 186,349
Loss for the year FERF - - - (36,533 (36,533
Dividend & - - - (12,533) (12,533)
At 31st December 2008 RZZENE+ZA=1+—H 79,418 86,759 - (28,894) 137,283
Issue of new shares for acquisiton ~ WEHB A AZTHR

of a subsidiary (Note 34) (PrEa4) 47,200 - - - 47,200
Loss for the year FEER - - - (23,218) (23,218)
Share based payment AR {R AR - - 718 - 718
At 31st December 2009 R=EZNE+-A=1—H 126,618 86,759 718 (52,112) 161,983
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B ISR AR Y EE

26. Reserves (cont'd)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

China P

The capital reserve of the Group arose from
acquisition of the remaining interests in a
subsidiary in 1999. The balance represents
the excess of the fair value attributable to the
net assets and liabilities acquired over the
consideration paid.

The merger reserve of the Group arising from
the group reorganisation is determined by the
difference between the nominal value of shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of
World Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries
acquired by the Company in 2000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, subject to a solvency test. At
the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

At 31st December 2009, reserves of the
Company available for distribution, including
the contributed surplus, amounted to
HK$34,647,000 (2008: HK$57,865,000).

ipe Group Limited HEIEZESEERAF

26. f#fm (&)

fiE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

A& B 2 BARFERRN —NANFURE—FHH
BARZER T HER - ARBRIEMBAFEER
BEZAREBEHEXNREZER -

AEBREESAMEL Z A GHRE - DRRE
SESEEAZMBARRMDEERIGIED #T
ZARRBEMEEMERZ ZREE °

RAFZEHANBERTIIEAR R A A I World
Trade Bun Kee (BVI) Ltd. 2EBE 317 & @A M 3
TZBROEEERNAR UL BB ARRZ
TETF 7 AEFEMERCESE - REERE
—NN\—FREE(KIEE]) - BABRKREFRESR
AENERBES AR ZERT Aok TR
RoEAREBZIRE £ BABRETHEAE
B AR 2 EEEKED o

RZZEZNF+_A=+—8 ' KRaJH#IIK
s (BIEEAZEL)E34,647,00087T (ZEF
J\EE : 57,865,000 7T) °



27. Borrowings

Non-current
Long term bank
borrowings (note (i)

Current
Current portion of long term
bank borrowings (note (i)
Short term bank
borrowings (note (ii))
Trust receipt loans (note (ii))
Bank overdrafts
(Note 23, note (i)

Representing:
Unsecured
Secured (note (vii))

Notes to the Financial Statements

27. &8

FERE
RHRITEE
(BRFEE ()

wE
RHSRITEE

BNEAED Sy (BRE ()
RERTITEE

(BRFRE (i)
EREBIRE R (ML (i)
RITIE S (PRE23 ~ FTRE (i)

He:
SR
B (BFE (vii)

B ISR B EE

2009 2008
“2ThEF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&x TAET
39,973 134,155
6,586 34,996
143,381 30,973
88,184 91,881

- 2,160
238,151 160,010
278,124 294,165
6,367 72,864
271,757 221,301
278,124 294,165
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B ISR AR Y EE

27. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes:

)

(i)

The long term bank borrowings are secured and
are at floating rates. The carrying amounts and
fair values of the long term bank borrowings are
as follows:

Long term bank borrowings ~ RHISRITEE
Carrying amounts BRE B
Fair values NifE

The fair values of current borrowings equal
their carrying amounts as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The fair values
of long term borrowings are estimated based
on discounted cash flow approach using the
prevailing market rates of interest available to
the Group of 5.94% (2008: 2.05%) for financial
instruments with substantially the same terms
and characteristics for the year ended 31st
December 2009, depending on the type and
currency of borrowings.

The carrying amounts of the short term bank
borrowings, trust receipt loans and bank
overdrafts approximate their fair values. As
at 31st December 2009, short term bank
borrowings of HK$$143,381,000 (2008:
HK$16,116,000) and trust receipt loans of
HK$81,817,000 (2008: HK$36,034,000) are
secured.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

27. R (&)

BdaE:

U

(i)

RRRTEEDAFERLIDZHFIRGE - &
HRTEEZRASHELRIABNT

2009 2008
ZEBAE —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
46,559 169,151
47,734 180,254

AR Z B TEX  BRBEE 2 AAE
HFZRmSEMAR - REBEEZ AR ERTE
BEZEBIREYE  FAASEEAZRITHST
R5.94% (T )\F : 2.05%) EE—_ZTZTH
F+ZA=+—HIEFEEREFEABHERZ
ST HIRR S REIIHRIA G ©

EHRITEE  ERREERRBTES ZERAR
SHEFEAABEESE R NF+=A
=+—H > 143,381,000 T 2 M HAHER 1T E K
(ZFE)\F : 16,116,00055 7T ) & 81,817,000
T2 EEWIEER(—ZZ )\ : 36,034,000
L) BABEEAE -
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B ISR B EE

27. Borrowings (cont’d) 27. BE(E)
Notes: (cont’d) MizE : (48)
(i)  The bank borrowings are denominated in the (i) RITEEUTIEETIE :
following currencies:
2009 2008
—ZThE 2T NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Bank borrowings: RITEE -
Hong Kong dollars BT 111,610 241,633
RMB AR 166,514 52,5632
278,124 294,165
(v)  The effective interest rates (per annum) at the vy REER  RITEBEZBBFEAT :
balance sheet date are as follows:
2009 2008
ZEThE —TT)N\F
% %
Long term bank borrowings ~ KHEIEE 6.53 2.86
Short term bank borrowings ~ EHIEE 5.71 2.41
Trust receipt loans EREBIRER 3.07 3.70
Bank overdrafts BITEX - 6.26
(v All short term bank borrowings, trust receipt v)  FTAEHSRITEE - ERBBEERRRITESY
loans and bank overdrafts will mature within one SR—FAIE - RERITEEZRHANT :
year. The maturity of long term bank borrowings
are as follows:
2009 2008
ZEThE —TT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Within one year —FR 6,586 34,996
Between one and two years ~ —FZE MG 6,586 15,566
Between two and five years MEZRHF 19,758 46,832
Wholly repayable within AR AT NEE
five years 18E 32,930 97,394
Wholly repayable after FF A EEE
five years (¥ 13,629 71,757
46,559 169,151
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B ISR AR Y EE

27. Borrowings (cont’d)

Notes: (cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to
interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are as
follows:

NEAZEAT

Six months or less

The banking facilities were secured by
corporate guarantees and certain assets held
by subsidiaries. The carrying values of the
assets include property, plant and equipment of
HK$73,084,000 (2008: Nil) (Note 14), land use
rights of HK$28,837,000 (2008: Nil) (Note 15),
investment properties of HK$185,231,000 (2008:
HK$295,498,000) (Note 17), assets held-for-
sale of HK$$114,680,000 (2008: Nil) (Note 24),
inventories of HK$38,926,000 (2008: Nil) (Note
20) and bank deposit of HK$38,576,000 (2008:
HIK$20,000,000) (Note 22).

As at 31st December 2009, the Group’s short
term bank borrowing amounted to approximately
RMB29.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$34.2 million) whereby the Group has not
fulfilled a non-financial covenant requirement
under a short term trade facility. Subsequent to
the year end, the Group has obtained a waiver
from the bank.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

27. &8 (i#)
GEREC)
V) REEE  AEEEETRONEEHETHE

(vii)

(viil

BEERAT :

2009 2008
ZEBAE —TEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
189,839 202,284

BITRERAREREMNBARBAEZETE
E-ZETEEZRAMER®IE73,084,000/% T
ZWE BERRB(ZZZTN\F: &) (i
14) - 28,837,000/8 w2 L HfF FH#E(=ZZTZ N
£ ;) (f7E15) ~ 185,231,000/8 T2 R EY
¥ (—ZTT)N\F : 295,498,000787T) (FizE17) »
114,680,000 B TC 2 FHEHEEE (ZTT/)\F :
) (fi5E24) ~ 38,926,000 T2 FE(ZZTZT )\
F ) (Fi3E20) R 8R1T17 538,576,000/ 7. (=
T )\ 4F : 20,000,000 7T) (HizE22) fEHEiH o

RIZEZEAF+T-A=+—H FTEEHARK
29,900,000( A 4734,200,000& 70 ) 2 B HRRTT
fBE  ARBARTEN - BEHESREBEN
FMB 2 BEHRRAZNR - RFIKE - ARERE
RITAER ©
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B ISR B EE

28. Deferred taxation 28. RERA
2009 2008
ZEBThE —TETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET T
Deferred tax assets to be B+ @ A%/
recovered after more FREFHIBEE
than 12 months 11,761 -
Deferred tax liabilities to be BT+ —ER%REE L
settled after more than FEEFIBEE
12 months (18,736) (1,997)
(6,975) (1,997)

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using tax
rates of the relevant subsidiaries applicable to the
period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates
that have been substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority
on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

BEERERAEBEERAENBL TJ’EHHQE“
BRAEEE CBRMERAcHE(REER
MBS EE M) (F 2B -

BAEERNTF AT IR S ERNHRIARE
HiH - MEEHREEREERBARES RF—
%R%’W&ﬁ%wﬁl » —RERB A B A A B AR

NABBRHRRERAFEAE - RIAEERIRE
EIEER B EE AR -

—ZETAFFHR Annual Report 2009 153



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y EE

28. Deferred taxation (cont’d) 28. EFEIRIA (48)
The net movement on the deferred tax account is RIETRIEAR B 2 FEFEMT ¢
as follows:
2009 2008
ZEThE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1st January n—HA—H (1,997) (5,780)
Acquisition of a Wi — KRB A A

subsidiary (Note 34) (PfF5E34) (9,116) -
Credited to income statement FERIRETA 4,139 3,783
Exchange differences PEH =58 (1) -
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H (6,975) (1,997)
The movement in deferred tax assets and BEMIAEERBBERFANE8) Rt LRHH
liabilities during the year, without taking into RlIEF R IR 2 4580 0T ¢
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets BEERREE
Tax losses
n¥EE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1st January 2008 and 2009 R=TZNFR-_TThF—A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeiE— BB A 7] (Mi5E34)

(Note 34) 9,467
Credited to income statement  7EURESERET A 2,364
Exchange differences M R 2
At 31st December 2009 RZZEZNF+_A=+—H 11,833
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28. Deferred taxation (cont’d) 28.

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1st January 2008 R-ZZZEN\F—H—H

(Charged)/credited to TS BR ($0RR),FTA
income statement

At 31st December 2008 RZZEZE\F+-A=1+—H

Credited to income statement FEWEERATA

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34)  UiBE—K KB A &l (FizE34)

Exchange differences PE N Z5E

At 31st December 2009 RZZEZNF+A=1+—8H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax losses carried forward to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$15,461,000 (2008: HK$8,442,000) in
respect of accumulated tax losses amounting
to HK$73,683,000 (2008: HK$42,108,000) as
at 31st December 2009, that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. As at
31st December 2009, the accumulated tax
losses amounting to HK$38,863,000 (2008:
HK$17,583,000) will be expired in five years.
There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

B ISR B EE

EIERIR (48)
EAEBIRS E

Tax Revaluation

depreciation on assets Total
mEHE EfEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THT 0
(390) (5,390) (5,780)

(62) 3,845 3,783

(452) (1,545) (1,997)
382 1,393 1,775

- (18,583) (18,583)

- ()] @)

(70) (18,738) (18,808)

RIEFTSTRIE A E DA ERRER B M Al B iR R
2R JE SR Ao i 1) A 3R T B P 4588 R TR 1R E 1 T
R AEBYAR_TTNLFE+_A=1+—H
A& AR RERTWA 2 25T HIEEE
15,461,000 7T (ZZZ )\ : 8,442,000 7T)
HERIEL TSR A A E 73,683,000/8 L (ZZTF
N 42,108,000%7T) - R=ZZZNF+=A
=1+—H ' ZZERFHIAEEZE 38,863,000
—ZTT)\F : 17,5683,000/87C) © KR AFARE
B o HhFRIB/E 8N m A o
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29. Trade and other payables 20. ESREMEMNRR

Group Company
&M FOF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE | —ZTT)\F | ZEBhAE| —ZT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T FHET TAT
Trade payables B IR 56,485 46,880 - -
Accrued expenses and ERERAK
other payables H A (15K 39,206 36,343 1,200 2,053
95,691 83,223 1,200 2,053

The ageing analysis of the
payables is as follows:

Group’s trade

Within 30 days 30 RLAA
31 to 60 days 31 RE60X
61 to 90 days 61 RZE90K
Over 90 days EBHE 90K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

Hong Kong dollars PETT
usD ET
RMB AR
Euro BT
Other currencies Hih sk

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

REEEZRNROREDITT

2009 2008
ZEBhEF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THETT
18,619 24,845
3,854 3,134
5,588 3,257
28,424 15,644
56,485 46,880

AEE 2 E S RAMETREZ EESERUT
EHEHE -

2009 2008
“EBhE —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
26,755 41,568
16,593 29,428
47,870 6,794
4,158 3,964

315 1,469

95,691 83,223
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B ISR B EE

30. Operating lease commitments 30. EEEMRIE
Group
.3 L]
2009 2008
—EThE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHIT
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year BB —F 15,456 13,291
Later than one year and BRA—FENERARF
not later than five years 25,640 5,802
Later than five years HBRAF 967 -
42,063 19,093
31. Contingent liability 31. RARAR
Save as the financial guarantee provided to a SHANFT 5E 34 TR ERIR (M T 28 = & MO I I HELR -
third party disclosed in Note 34, the Group has RZZZENF+A=1+—H  ~"EBEHE MK
no other contingent liability as at 31st December NBE -
20009.
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B ISR AR Y EE

32. Notes to the consolidated cash flow

statement
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income (@)
tax to net cash generated from
operations
Loss before income tax BiRIER
Adjustments for: B TBIfELL A% -
Depreciation e
Amortisation i
Gain on disposal of property, HEE - BiE k&G
plant and equipment (note) Mg (FEE)
Fair value (gains)/losses on REWMEZ ARE
investment properties (Wz) /B8
Fair value (gains)/losses on MBEEZ

financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expenses
Provision for impairment
of trade receivables, net
Provision for impairment of inventories, net
Share based payment
Changes in working capital: =
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease in amounts due from
related companies
Decrease in trade and other payables
Decrease in amount due to a
minority shareholder
(Decrease)/increase amounts due to
related companies

Net cash generated from operations &

158 China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

RREE)/BR

BIA
BxH
HRMGREREFR

Gl
J

=t

FEREREFR

AR BERAI R K

EELHE

FERD

B 5 RE YGRS

BRAEEEERRNIK
M EERD /(i)

ERBE A RIER D

85 REMEMNRD
e~ BRI

FERBERRITIER (), /1 m

EXBHAERLFE

32. FEBRKRERME

BABRESEXER CRERAFEY

B
2009 2008
ZEThE —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
(42,980) (36,868)
4,329 3,503
108 -
- (536)
(4,136) 31,582
(5,728) 29,798
(119) (190)
13,104 13,801
20,084 23,876
13,290 5,251
718 -
134,690 6,396
53,512 10,587
28,221 (29,359)
- 8,586
(91,940) (5,211)
(10,092) -
(1,994) 1,994
111,067 63,216




Notes to the Financial Statements

32. Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement (cont’d)

(a)

Reconciliation of loss before income
tax to net cash generated from
operations (cont’d)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment comprises:

Net book amount BREFAE
Gain on disposal e
Proceeds from disposal L E RSB K

B

B ISR B EE

32. FERKRERME ()

@ BABBRESEXBIRERANFEY

iR (48)

MR HEME - BERREZAMERES

¥
2009 2008
ZEBAE —TENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#xT THTT
- 13
- 536
- 549

—ZETAFFHR Annual Report 2009
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B RS ERAR L

32. Notes to the consolidated cash flow 32. FERERERMEE)
statement (cont’d)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (b) WE—XKEATR
2009 2008
ZETNE —ZTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Net assets acquired BEANFEAE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) %1% i k5 (HizE 14) 106,897 -
Land use rights (Note 15) Tt fE R (Hi7E15) 30,638 =
Inventories FE 68,074 =
Trade and other receivables B REMRKER 49,781 =
Pledged bank deposit BRI 17,148 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeBReEEY 1,572 =
Amount due to a shareholder e FUR (10,225) -
Trade and other payables IR EMERER (104,121) =
Borrowings HE (68,592) -
Deferred tax assets (Note 28) RICHIEE E (s 28) 9,467 -
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 28) ERHAR R (M 28) (18,583) -
Net assets EERE 82,056 =
Minority interest LERRER (32,822) -
49,234 -
Goodwill e 22,266 -
71,500 -
Satisfied by: SAEE
Cash paid BfRE 22,700 =
Consideration shares RERH 48,800 =
71,500 -
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect BRKE-—FHELRZ
of acquisition of a subsidiary: REmMFBIN :
Cash paid BAERE 22,700 =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEARELREEEY (1,572 =
Net cash outflow in respect of BREME—ZNBAR
acquisition of a subsidiary ZRERIFE 21,128 -
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B ISR AR B EE

33. Related party transactions

(a)

Balances with related parties

Amount due to arelated  EfF—KEdE

company (note (i) (BFEE ()

Loan from a shareholder A% ER & X (P 5+ (i)
(note (i)

Notes:

(i)

The related company is beneficially owned
and controlled by certain key management
of the Group. The balances were
unsecured, bearing interest at 5.31% per
annum (2008: interest-free) and repayable
on demand.

The loan is from Mr. Lai Guanglin,
also a director of the Company. As at
31st December 2009, the balance is
unsecured, balance of approximately
HK$49,360,000 bears interest at
HK Dollar prime rate plus 4.75% per
annum and the remaining balance of
HK$5,000,000 bears interest at 1% per
month and repayable within one year
(2008: bears interest at 1% per month
and not repayable within the next twelve
months).

Interest expenses paid to related parties
for the year ended 31st December 2009
and 2008 are disclosed in Note 9.

B

AEALZS

(@) EBEANLHER

2009 2008
—EThEF ZEEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&xT TAT
23,449 1,994
59,881 29,651

it -

ERELNFTBHASEETEEEEEA
BEnEa RIES - BRAGSHRAERA -
FEMES31%T B (ZTENF . 2B)
BRESKEHEE o

%

\\\

iy FHEEFREANARESFLa Guanglinit
£ RZZTTAE+-_A=+—8 " %=
ER R EEIR - B %) 49,360,000 L%
FLABTREBFNENA75% T ERHBT
awam&%m&ﬂa1%ﬁg BRRK
1FREE(ZEENE : BE1%TER
EENRIRA12EARNEE) °

(iii @5:2?h¢&_77A¢+ A
=+—HILFE NHEEERARZAES
BRI FE QIR -
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33. Related party transactions (cont’d)

(b) Key management compensation

Fro MEMmEH
EE®EH

Salaries and other short
term employee benefits

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans HETE

Share based payment

34. Business combination

On 11th November 2009, the Group completed
the acquisition of the 60% equity interest in
Jinyufeng at consideration of cash of RMB18
million (equivalent to HK$20.4 million) and issue
of new shares of 800,000,000 shares of the
Company. Jinyufeng is engaged in manufacturing
and sale of sealmess pipes in mainland China.

The acquired business contributed revenues of
HK$61,162,000 and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$397,000 to the
Group for the post acquisition period. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1st January 2009,
revenue and loss contributed to the Group for
the year would have been HK$243,486,000 and
HK$9,951,000 respectively.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

BAERA—EHE

VARR 17 AR EEHE 2 53K

33.

34.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FREANLES ()

(b) FEEEASHRM

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x TAT
14,179 20,911

144 1,367

523 -
14,846 22,278

RIS

RZZEZNF+—A+—H AEBUARE
18,000,000 (%18 20,430,0007870) 23R & K& 31T
7872 7] 800,000,000 B #T AR D 1E AR(E, B
B 7 60% HEm © S B R B R REE = A EE K S
EHEINE -

REEHE ZEBRERAEE TR KA
61,162,00078 7T & A A &) [R5 H A B A5 &
397,000 T » MEKRER=_ZZNF—A
—BELE FRAAEMIBAREBES A
243,486,000 87T 1 9,951,000 47T, ©
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B ISR B EE

34. E¥aH (W)

34. Business combination (cont’d)

Set forth below is a preliminary AR RSB 2 Mt B A%

calculation of goodwill:

HK$’000
THT
Purchase consideration (note (i)): BERE (K :
— Cash paid to the vendor -BENREFEA 20,430
— Direct cost relating to the acquisition -BEAWEEE BERA 2,270
— Fair value of shares issued -BETROZAREE 48,800
Total purchase consideration BERERSE 71,500
Less: fair value of share of net identifiable & : FE(EEE AR #7514 E/FE
assets acquired, determined NARE  BREEEEER]
provisionally (shown as below) (WA T3CFR) (49,234)
Goodwill Bl 22,266
Note: BtaE :

The final purchase consideration amount is
contingent on a RMB30 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$34.1 million) profit guarantee
provided by the former equity holders of
Jinyufeng. The former equity holders of Jinyufeng
have guaranteed the Group that the net profit of
Jinyufeng shall not be less than RMB30 million
for the year ending 31st December 2010 (the
“Profit Guarantee”), and would compensate the
Group for the shortfall, if any, in proportion to
their equity shareholdings. Based on estimation
made by management, it is considered
that the exercise of the Profit Guarantee is
remote. No adjustment in respect of the Profit
Guarantee was therefore made to the purchase
consideration and goodwill as at 31st December
2009. However, the amount of shortfall (if any)
would be recognised and the goodwill would be
adjusted when it can be ascertained at the time
the financials of Jinyufeng for the year ending
31st December 2010 are available.

WIERE 2 &ESHE - MiImNhEMERIARRE
2 AE#530,000,000(Z{E%734,100,000787T)
ZHMBRE - FIERAHESHERBE_T—F
FH—HA=+—BLEFEFNETPRARE
30,000,000 ([FERE]) » ARIZAAELL B FH1E
ZRTAKE(WF) - ENEREMbE - BAR1T
EFRBRBEMN - MR _TTNFF_A=+—
B REEMBREMERQWBRELEEE
AE o ERZERAREBIFHE(E) - UK
EESHMENEBE_T—ZF+_A=t—H1it
WFEEXERS SRHEDE -
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B ISR AR Y EE

34. Business combination (cont’d)

The assets and liabilities as of the completion

date arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Net tangible assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment

KRR RESE :

Land use rights It {FE A
Inventories FE

Trade and other receivables B 5 R H Ab EUGRIA
Pledged bank deposit EIRRITIE K

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY
Amount due to a shareholder FETAR R SRIE

Trade and other payables g 5 RH MR FIE
Borrowings BE

Deferred tax assets BIETIIE A E
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIAS &

Net assets (Note (i) BB A (B (i)
Minority interest DER R e e

Net assets acquired BABEFE

Note:

34. RIS bt (1)

R BRBREMEL cEERAENT

Acquirees’ Acquirees’
carrying amount fair value
L NG LG N
BAREEE HARKE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F#ET
53,022 106,897
10,180 30,638
68,074 68,074
49,781 49,781
17,148 17,148
1,572 1,672
(10,225) (10,225)
(104,121) (104,121)
(68,592) (68,592)
9,467 9,467
- (18,583)
26,306 82,056
(32,822)
49,234

B -

(i

Included in net assets acquired, there was
a guarantee provided by Jinyufeng to an
independent third party (the “third party”) for
RMB25.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$29.2 million) banking facility obtained by
the third party (the “financial guarantee”). The
fair value of the financial guarantee could only
be determined provisionally pending completion
of the assessment of the third party’s credit
worthiness and valuation process and such
amount would be adjusted within 12 months of
the date of acquisition against goodwill upon
final determination of the fair value of the financial
guarantee.

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

(i)

WEZFEEER  BEeWErs—UBLE
=HF(E=ZF))BERTHEMRBEARE
25,500,000 ( 55 {8 4929,200,00078 7T ) 2 B % &
R(TFEER]) - MBEEROARERGERTE
R B HNEENTENRERFDNERET - F8
BRERNAABREBRETEE 2B BERKER
B+ — {8 B R = -



35.

36.

37.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Events after the balance sheet date

Save as the disposal of investment properties
as disclosed in Note 24, there was no significant
subsequent event that took place subsequent to
31st December 2009.

Ultimate holding company

The directors of the Company consider
Singapore Zhongxin, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate
holding company. Singapore Zhongxin is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin, a
director of the Company.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the
board of directors on 20th April 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR Y EE

subsidiaries

Name

4

Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong

Bun Keg (International) Limited

i (B ) AR AT

Hamerwind Logistic Gompany
Limited
BEMRERAR

Hing’s Godown & Transportation
CGompany Limited
RYERARAT

Patterson Engineering
CGompany Limited
EITLEARAT

Established in the Brtish
Virgin Islands and
operating in Hong Kong

CRERXEENY

Glory Star Trading Limited
REBHBRAA

38. Particulars of the principal

Principal Activities

ERRH

Trading of construction materials,
mainly pipes and fittings
inHong Kong
REREEREH  TERRE
REH

Provision of warehousing and logistic

services in Hong Kong

REREET RIRRS

Provision of warehousing
services in Hong Kong
REERMEHRE

Property investment in Hong Kong

Property investment in Hong Kong

China Pipe Group Limited AEIE#&£®EERATE

38. ¥ EMBLATEH

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERTRERE
R/l

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
3,000,000 non-vating
deferred shares of HKS1 each
10k BREE 1 BT LRk
3000000k EKHAE1ETL
ERZEELRA

800 ordinary shares of HK$100 each

800RERAE 1007 ERR

1,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each
1,000 G RE(E 100772 Sk
1,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each

1000 EREE100/ET, SRR

1,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each

1000 RERAE1 Frs Lak

Attributable to

the Group
FREE

Percentage

aalt

Held by the
Company

FORRA

Held by
subsidiaries

BARRA



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B EE

38. Particulars of the principal 38. XEMBEATEH ()
subsidiaries (cont’d)
Percentage
aalt
Particulars of
issued share capital/
registered capital Attributable to Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities EETRER the Group Company subsidiaries
h IERK R/l FREE XN BLFRH
Established and operating in PRC
ERER RS
EEeHeERIERRAT Manufactuing and sale RMBS50,000,000 60 - 60
of seamless pipes in the PRC
R ERHE RN AB#%50,000,000
Bun Kee Building Material Trading of construction materials, US§200,000 100 = 100
(Shangha Co., Ltd. mainly pipes and fittings in the PRC
Wadkt (L8) BRAR REEEEREMH  TERKEREN 200000 %7
Bun Kee Building Material Assembling materials in the PRC HK$9,000,000 100 = 100
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.
Wik (BM) ERAR PR R 9,000,000 %7
LBkENRERARAA Property investment in the PRC 585,000,000 100 - 100
RREMERE 5,000,000 70
Established and operating
in Macao
FEUREE
Bun Kee Building Material and Trading of construction materials, MOP50,000 100 - 100
Equipment (Macao) Co., Ltd. mainly pipes and fittings in Macao

WaRnERE(AFARRA  NEFRERENN - TRARERER 500008F%
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFUBHRE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“ETRFE —TENF —ETtF —ZTT)\F| ZEThE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000| HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FBL THT
Results ]
Revenue WA 522,921 617,556 633,668  701,766| 453,785
Profit/(loss) before income tax Bianas/ (58) 51,113 71,616 84,583 (36,868)|  (42,980)
Income tax (expense)/credit PE(ZH) /e (8,589) (12,314) (17,479) (5,728) 3,583
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEF/(B8) 42,524 59,302 67,104 (42,596)  (39,397)
Attributable to: FElE
Equity holders of the Company RERBA 42,524 59,302 67,104 (42,596) (39,662)
Minority interest PR EE R - - - - 265
42 524 59,302 67,104 (42,59)|  (39,397)
Assets and liabilities HERAR
Total assets BEE 425,261 523,353 817,492 820,834 | 924,788
Total liabilities Hak (132,606)  (183,489)  (369,883)  (416,210)|  (476,645)
Total equity Bt 292,655 339,864 447,609 404,624 448,143
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